AGENDA
BOARD OF SELECTMEN
April 13,2021
7:00 p.m.

Town Building & Zoom

Pursuant to Governor Baker's March 12, 2020 Order Suspending Certain Provisions of the Open Meeting
Law, G.L. c. 30A, §18, and the Governor's March 15, 2020 Order imposing strict limitation on the number
of people that may gather in one place. This meeting of the Board of Selectmen will take place without any
public present, but we will make every effort to ensure the public can adequately access the non-executive
session proceedings in real time via Zoom.

—

ol

Join Zoom Meeting
https://zoom.us/j/91067915397 2pwd=UXFKNiNwVGRKcjdiOUNMRUpm VIdKZz09

Meeting ID: 910 6791 5397
Passcode: 887560

Public input

Chairman’s comments

Appointments:
o Joseph Jacobs to the position of Veterans Services Officer through June 30, 2022
o Liz Beck to the Open Space Committee through June 30, 2023

Discussion and Possible Vote
o Discussion of FY22 State Budget with Rep. Kate Hogan and Sen. Jamie Eldridge

o Promotions - Updated Policy — Chief Sallese
o Sign Inter-Municipal Agreement for Animal Control Services
o Sign Inter-Municipal Agreement: Making Connections Pilot Program (Go STOW!)
o Disposition of Surplus Goods and Equipment (Facilities)
o Town Meeting Discussion
= Logistics
= Consent Calendar
o FY2022 Budget Discussion

o Discussion of March 10, 2020 Executive Session minutes

Town Administrator’s Report
Liaison reports
Meeting minutes

o March 23, 2021

o July §, 2020

o June 18, 2020

o June 9, 2020

o June 9, 2020 Executive Session

o May 1, 2020 Executive Session
Correspondence

Executive Session
o Pursuant to MGL c¢. 30A, sec.21 (a) (2), to conduct contract negotiations with the Town
Administrator.

10. Adjournment

Posted Friday, 4/09/2021



APPOINTMENTS



23 March 2021

To the Honorable Board of Selecmen
Stow Ma
| Joseph Jacobs do want to be reappointed to the position of

Veterans Service Officer for the Town of Stow Massachusetts.

Respectively

oy

Joseph Jacobs



Town of Stow

Office of the
Town _Administrator
380 Great Read
Stow, MAOI775
Denise M. DembRoski Tel> 975-897-2927

TJown Administrator
townadministralor ¢ stow-1na, 2oy

After reviewing the application letter and speaking to the
candidate, I am recommending Liz Beck to the Open Space
Committee through June 30, 2023.



Town of Stow
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

Stow Town Building
380 Great Road
Stow, Massachusetts 01775
(978) 897-4515  selectmen@stow-ma.gov Fax (978) 8974534

NOTICE OF VACANCY

OPEN SPACE COMMITTEE
Two members

Duties: Advise the Board of Selectmen, and other public and private stakeholders, on the
protection of the Town’s open space priorities.

Prioritize and evaluate Chapter 61 and other parcels for their significant
conservation and open space values.

Lead in the implementation and updating of the Open Space and Recreation Plan.

Participate in monthly meeting of the Open Space Committee.

Qualifications: Registered voter of Stow.

Term: Appointment by the Board of Selectmen, two members for 3-year terms expiring
June 30, 2023.

Application: The Board of Selectmen will accept letters of application until the positions
are filled. If you are interested, please contact the Selectmen’s Office at
selectmen@stow-ma.gov or 978-897-4515.

Posted October 22, 2020



Phoebe Haberkorn

From: Liz Beck [liz@stowicpoint.com]

Sent: Saturday, December 05, 2020 2:25 PM

To: selectmen@stow-ma.gov

Subject: OPEN SPACE COMMITTEE- application request
Hello,

I'am a new resident of Stow and am interested in participating on the Open Space Committee. Are you able to
provide additional information and send along an application?

I'look forward to hearing from you.

Best,
Liz .
() 3}/
Liz Beck ) ‘(‘f
.’\ \ \?"
617.777.4665 }’0 QN /

6‘3“ i

\P
ngw 7 QR



DISCUSSION &
POSSIBLE VOTE



Y2022 State Budget
with Rep. Kate Hogan
and Sen. Jamie Eldridge



Promotions

Updated Policy

Chief Sallese



PROMOTIONS

ISSUE
POLICY & PROCEDURE NO. | DATE:
4.33.1
EFFECTIVE
MASSACHUSETTS POLICE DATE:

ACCREDITATION STANDARDS
REFERENCED: 34.1.1; 34.1.2;
34.1.3; 34.1.5; 34.1.6; 34.1.7 | REVISION DATE:

I. GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS AND GUIDELINES

This policy applies to promotions for sworn personnel only.

Our department’'s commitment to developing employees to take on increasing levels
of authority, responsibility and leadership is embodied in promotions. Eligible
candidates have an opportunity to apply and participate in the promotion process as
set forth in this policy.

Promotions must be based upon the merits of the individuals and their personal
performance in the promotion process, and never on favoritism or seniority alone. A
promotion is an investment in the future, not only for the department, but also for the
employees who will be supervised and guided by the promoted member.

II. POLICY

It is the policy of this department to promote employees based upon their training,
experience and merit.

No employees will be denied promotion based upon any discriminatory criteria,
including, but not limited to, their sex or sexual orientation, race, religion, nationality
or union membership.

III. DEFINITIONS

A. Time in Grade: The number of years and months that an employee has held a
specific rank or pay grade.

B. Bypass: The selection of a person or persons whose name or names, by reason
of score, merit preference status, court decree, decision on appeal from a court
or administrative agency, or legislative mandate, appear lower on a certification

Page 1 of 5



than a person or persons who are not appointed and whose names appear
higher on said certification.

IV. PROCEDURES

1. DEPARTMENT ROLE IN THE PROMOTION PROCESS: This department
shall notify employees of the promotion process, and shall provide testing
and performance evaluations, and shall evaluate training, experience,
seniority, and work history. The results of selection evaluations shall be
reported to the appointing authority. [34.1.1]

2. PROMOTION PROCESS MANAGER: The Chief of Police and Town
Administrator shall manage and coordinate promotions within this
department and shall have the authority necessary to carry out the duties
of the position. The duties shall include the following: [34.1.2]

a.

b.

Be knowledgeable of the promotion processes for all employees:;

Provide and post any written announcements of any scheduled
promotional opportunities;

Maintain data on eligibility requirements for positions above entry
level:

Maintain copies of active promotion lists;

If used, coordinate with any companies or consultants contracted to
participate in the promotion process;

Coordinate with any other government agencies or entities involved
in the promotion process; and

Protect the integrity of the promotional process by ensuring that all
promotional materials, documents, scores, evaluations forms, and
completed evaluations remain confidential and are kept in a secure,

locked location. [34.1.3(h)]

Promotional materials shall be retained for at least three years.
Once a promotional process has been completed, all appeals have
been exhausted or appeal periods have expired, and no litigation is
pending, promotional materials shall be destroyed by shredding.

3. NOTICE OF PROMOTION:

a. All promotions will be posted internally for 7 days, prior to any

external posting, which will remain posted for a period of an
additional 7 days.

Page 2 of 5



b. No outside recruiting will occur during the 7 days of internal posting,
except for Deputy Chief or Chief of Police

€. Such notice shall be:
1. Posted in a prominent place;

2. Forwarded to supervisors to be read at roll-call:
3. Sent to all affected personnel in the form of an e-mail: and
4

. Mailed to any officers who are out sick or injured, on extended
leave, on active military duty, or otherwise not likely to receive

notice.

d. The notice shall include:
Eligibility requirements as described in job descriptions;

Job descriptions

The selection process;
Method of applying;
Process for promotion

® 0w N o

Closing date for each step;
7. Duration of the process; and
4. ELIGIBILITY: To be eligible for promotion to each successive rank:

a. An officer must be a permanent member employed by this
department for at least five years.

b. Officers must be in good standing with the Stow Police Department.

c. Lateral transfer officers must be an officer for a total time as an
officer for 5 years.

d. An officer must be a permanent police officer.
e. Reserve officers are not eligible for promotion to permanent ranks.

f. Ineligible officers may not reapply until such time that they become
eligible. [34.1.3(f)]

5. PROCESS [34.1.3(D)]
a. Promotional announcement with Sergeant Job Description

b. Cover Letter and Resume to the Chief on intent to take part in
Sergeant Process

Page 3 of 5



c. Essay questions give to candidates
d. Essay questions turned into Promotional Board
e. Sergeant Promotional Board to review, score and rank essays

f. Promotional Board interview
g. Candidates scored, reviewed and ranked by Promotional Board

h. Scores, Ranking, Notes on Candidates and essay given to area
Command Interview Board.

i. Command Interview Board (Area Police Chiefs) Interview
J.  Command Board score and rank candidates

k. Top 3 Candidates interview with Town Administrator and Police
Chief

6. CANDIDATE EVALUATIONS [34.1.3(A)]

a. The Chief and Town Administrator shall have the right to select the
individual that they believe to be the best candidate for the position.
In making their decision, they shall consider criteria which may
include but not be limited to: [34.1.1][34.1.2]

1) Written Essays or Test: Weight 20 %;
2) Oral Interview with Chiefs: Weight 25 %;

3) Oral Interview with Chief and Town Administrator: Weight
25%:
4} Training, education, experience: Weight 15 %;
5) Seniority: Weight 10 %
6) Veteran: Weight 5%
b. Candidates shall be ranked by the cumulative score. In the event
that two or more candidates obtain identical cumulative scores,

ranking shall be determined by seniority, test score, time in service,
time in grade. Candidates may also be listed as “tied.”

c. A cumulative score will be reported to each candidate after all
candidates have been interviewed, at a time determined by the
Chief of Police and Town Administrator and prior to being made
available to the employees at large. The score shall also show the

Page 4 of 5



employees’ scores on each individual component of the promotion
process.

7. CANDIDATE APPEAL AND REVIEW [34.1.3(E)]
a. Within seven days of receiving notice of individual promotion

process component scores, an employee may appeal to the Town
Administrator. He or she may also refer his/her decision to the
Board of Selectman to conduct a review of any or all of the
components.

Upon completion of such review, the employee shall be advised in
writing of the results of the review and in the event of a change, the
scores and ranking shall be adjusted accordingly.

8. CANDIDATE SELECTION [43.1.6(E)]

a.

d.

The number of candidates to be included in any final selection for
promotion shall be determined by the appointing authority.

The Chief of Police and Town Administrator shall recommend
candidates to the appointing authority in an order of preference.

In creating such recommendations, the following shall be
considered at a minimum:

Cumulative score ranking:
Work history;
Sick use history;

o o

C

d. Disciplinary history;

e. Seniority; and

f. Any and all specialty training.

PROBATIONARY PERIOD: All employees promoted to a higher
rank shall be subject to a six month probationary period  [34.1.7]

Page 5 of 5



Sign Inter-Municipal
Agreement for
Animal Control Services



INTERMUNICIPAL AGREEMENT
ANIMAL CONTROL SERVICES

This Inter-Municipal Agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered into pursuant to M.G.L. ¢.40. § 4A. on the
last day of exccution below (the Effective Date). by and between the Town of Boxborough. a municipal
corporation with a principal office at Town Hall, 29 Middle Road. Boxborough. MA 01719 (“Boxborough™)
and the Town of Stow. a municipal corporation with a principal office at Town Hall. 380 Great Road. Stow.
MA 01775-2127 (“Stow™).

Whereas. Stow is sccking the services of an Animal Control Officer ("fACO™) on an as-needed basis from
§:00 AM to 6:00 PM. Sunday — Saturdav: and

Whereas. Stow secks services of an ACO on an emergency basis to handle aggressive and injurcd animals
from 6:00 PM to 8:00 AM. Sunday - Saturday: and

Whereas. subject to the terms of this Inter-Municipal Agreement. Boxborough is willing to provide its ACO
to perform certain ACO Scrvices for Stow.

NOW THEREFORE the Towns agrec as follows:

Term

1. The Term of this Agreement shall be from July 1. 2021, through Junc 30. 2022. subject to
appropnation of funding by Stow.

2. The Agreement may be further extended or modified upon written Agreement of the Boxborough
Town Administrator and the Stow Town Admunistrator and as approved by the respective Boards
of Selectmen,

3. The Imitial Term and all Extension Terms shall be collectively referred to as the Term.

4. The Agreement may be terminated for convenience by cither party as provided below.

Boxborough’s Commitment to Provide ACQO Services to Stow

5. Basic Services: Boxborough shall provide routine ACO services to Stow as defined under Scope
of Services below on an as-needed basis seven davs a week from 8:00 AM to 6:00 PM.

6. Emcrgency Services: For an additional cost during the Term, Boxborough shall provide ACO
services on an emergency basis to Stow to handle aggressive and injured animals seven davs a
week from 6:00 PM to 8:00 AM.

Stow’s Financial Commitment to Pav Boxborough for Animal Control Services

7. In consideration for the basic scrvices provided under this Agreement. Stow shall pav Boxborough
one-third (1/3) of the total cost of the Animal Control Officer. including wages. fringe benefits.
expenses and an administration fee which covers county retirement. workers compensation. payroll
admunistration. supplies. veterinary expenses. and kennel lease. the total of which is broken down

Animal Control IMA — Boxborough/Stow., 7/1/21 — 6/30/22 Page 1 0f' 6



as follows:

Annual Wages (2088 hours « $24 60/hour) $31.365.00
Medicare (1.45% x$51.365.00) 745.00

Estimated Medicare on additional compensation
(1.45% x $7.675) 111.00
Health insurance family plan 21.630.00
Vehicle purchase. maintenance and insurance 10,000.00
Cell phone (‘«, $90/month plus Ipad) 1.080.00
Administration fee (10% x $51.365.00) 3.136.00
$90,087.00

Stow’s share of the annual expenses for the basic services provided under this Agreement for the
period July 1. 2021 through June 30. 2022 shall be Thirty Thousand Twentv-Nine Dollars
($30.029). to be paid in eleven monthly installments of Two Thousand Five Hundred Two Dollars
and Fifty Cents ($2.502.50) and onc final installment of Two Thousand Five Hundred One Dollars

and Fifty Cents ($2.501.50).

8. In consideration for the emergency services provided under this Agreement. Stow shall pay
Boxborough the sum of $36.90 per hour. with a four-hour minimum per call. for the period July 1.
2021 through June 30, 2022.

9. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Boxborough Town Administrator and the Stow Town
Administrator. Boxborough's Accountant will invoice Stow on a monthly basis. and Stow's
Treasurer shall pay cach such invoice within thirty (30) davs of the invoice date.

10. Stow warrants and represents that it has appropriated funds for and sufficient to cover Stow's
financial commitment to pay Boxborough for the shared services and any related costs and

expenses under this Agreement.

11. For cach Extended Term. Stow warrants and represents that it shall either (a) appropriate funds for
and sufficient to cover Stow’s financial commitment to pay Boxborough for the shared services
and any related costs and expenses under this Agreement, or (b) notify Boxborough in writing at
least thirty davs prior to the commencement of the Extended Term that Stow has not made such an
appropriation in which case this Agreement shall be null and void and of no further force or effect.

Fees, Licensing and Fines

12. Dog owner shall be responsible for paying the following fees direetly to Boxborough:
a) $10  Dog Pick-up fee
b) $50 Dog picked up not displaving a valid license
c) $40 Dog kenneling per day

13. Dog owner shall be responsible for paving licensing and fines directly to Stow.

14. In the event of non-payment, abandoned animal or unknown animal. Stow will be responsible for
unpaid fees. which will be added to the monthly invoice.

Anmal Control IMA — Boxborough/Stow, 7/1/21 — 6/30/22 Page 2 of 6



Record Keeping

15. ACO shall keep accurate and comprehensive records of services performed under this Agreement.

Personnel

16.

17.

During the Term. Boxborough shall emplov and pay all benefits for the ACO.

The ACO while engaged in performing ACO Services in Stow under this Agreement shall be
deemed to be engaged in the service and emplovment of Boxborough, notwithstanding such
service. activity or undertaking is being performed in or for Stow.

Rights and Indemnities

18.

19.

By cntering into this Agreement, Boxborough and Stow have not waived any governmental
immunity or limitation of damagces that may be extended to them by operation of law. Boxborough
and Stow are the sole and exclusive bencticiarics of the Agreement. No third-party rights. express
or implied. are created by this Agreement. The provisions of this paragraph shall survive
termination of the Agrecement.

Notwithstanding the preceding paragraph. to the maximum extent permitted by law, both
Boxborough and Stow agree that with respect to incidents which occur in their own town, thev will
defend. indemnify. and hold cach other harmless from and against anv and all claims or causcs of
action for ijury. loss. damage. lability. costs or expenses (including reasonable attorneyvs' fees and
court costs) arising out of any occurrences in cach parties” respective towns which are related to
Animal Control Officer Services provided in their own town under this Agreement. The provisions
of this paragraph shall survive termination of the Agreement.

Procedure to Request Services

20.

21.

22,

If available, Stow Police shall provide initial response to all animal complaints in Stow and
determine if ACO services are required.

If Stow Police have determined that ACO services are required. they shall request such services by
calling Boxborough's Public Safety Dispatch at 978-264-1740.

Although rabid animals fall under the jurisdiction of the Stow Anmimal Inspector. and are not subject
to the terms of this Agreement. Boxborough's Public Safety Dispateh will provide communications
coordination for both the ACO and the Animal Inspector. For tracking and operational purposes.
Stow Police shall request Animal Inspector scrvices for rabid animals by calling Boxborough's

Public Safcty Dispatch at 978-264-1740.

Scope of ACO Services

23. ACO Scrvices under this Agreement shall include the following:

a) Catching stray and/or injured dogs.
by Secking treatment for ill/injured impounded dogs as necessary,

¢) Responding to complaints regarding stray or injured animals.

Animal Control IMA — Boxborough/Stow, 7/1/21 — 6/30/22



d) Working with shelters and networking agencics to assist in the safe. legal and healthy transfer
of impounded animals.

¢) Working with the Stow Police department to further investigate charges of animal cruelty as
stipulated and explained in Massachusctts General Law.

f) Venfving rabies and licensing status of impounded dogs.
g) Prosccuting violators of Stow’s animal control byvlaws.
h) Checking dead animals for microchip. Stow shall be responsible for final disposition.

1) Transporting injured dogs to veterinarian. Dog owner shall be responsible for cost. If no
known owner. Stow shall be responsible for cost.

1) Providing advice and information to residents regarding pest control options.

k) ACO shall pick up destroved animals and arrange with Stow’s Animal Inspector for testing if
necessary.  Stow shall be responsible for paving the testing fees and for final disposition of
destroved animals.

24, The ACO shall have enforcement junisdiction in Stow under and concerning all applicable laws.
bvlaws. rules and regulations as may from time to time be in cffect during the Term hereof.

25. ACO shall attend dog hearings as requested.
26. Stow Police should destroy severely injured dogs 1f possible and safe to do so.
27. Stow Police should destrov rabid animals if possible and safe to do so.

28. This Scope of Services may be amended from time to time with the mutual written agreement of
both Towns.

Administration

29, The Boxborough Town Admimistrator and the Stow Town Administrator shall administer this
Agreement. They, and/or the respective Chiefs of Police shall meet and/or confer periodically to
address matters of policy. operations and logistics as from time to time may arisc under this
Agreement.

30. The Boxborough Police Chief shall provide primary supervision of the ACO.

31. Stow shall be responsible for providing the ACO with the most recently updated list of all active
dog licenses and rabics vaccination information.

Termination

32. Either Boxborough or Stow. by votes of their Boards of Sclectmen. may terminate this Agreement
at any time on sixty (60) dayvs advance written notice to the other. after which time this Agreement
shall be null and void and of no further force or effect except (a) as to payments owed for services
provided prior to termination, and (b) as otherwise expressly set forth with respect to survival of

Animal Control IMA — Boxborough/Stow. 7/1/21 - 6/30/22 Page 4 of 6



paragraphs 19 and 20 above.
Notices

33. All notices required under this Agreement shall be deemed made when provided by hand. sent by
certified mail, or sent by overnight mail or counier service to, as applicable. (a) the Boxborough
Town Administrator, Town Hall. 29 Middl¢ Road. Boxborough. MA 01719, with a copy to the
Boxborough Board of Sclectmen at the same address. and (b) the Stow Town Administrator,
Town Hall. 380 Great Road. Stow. MA 01775, with a copy to the Boxborough Board of
Selectmen at the same address.

Assignment

34, This Agreement shall not be assigned or transferred by either party, without the express written
consent of the other party given with the same formalities as are required for the exccution of this
Agrecement,

Entire Asreement

35. This Agrecment constitutes the entire agreement of the partics with respect to the subject matter
hereof and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings relating to the subject matter.

Anmmal Control IMA — Boxborough/Stow, 7/1/21 — 6/30/22 Page Sof6



IN WITNESS WHEREOF. the partics hereto have exccuted this Agrecement as of the day of

. 2021.

Ryan Ferrara. Boxborough Town Administrator

APPROVED BY: Sclect Board of
the Town of Boxborough

Weslev 1. Fowlks, Chair

John M. Markiewicz. Clerk

Maria E. Nevland

Leslic R, Fox

Robert T. Stemple

Denise M. Dembkoski. Stow Town Administrator

APPROVED BY: Board of Selectmen of the Town of
Stow

Thomas E. Rvan Il Chair

Mcgan Birch-McMichael

Cortni Frecha

Ellen Sturgis

James H. Salvie

Animal Control IMA - Boxborougl/Stow, 7/1/21 - 6/30/22

Page 6 of 6



Sign Inter-Municipal
Agreement for Making
Connections Pilot Program
(Go STOW!)



Planning Board

380 Great Road Town of stow
Stow, MA 01775 &
Tel: 978-807-5098 Planning Board

Fax: 978-897-2321

Memo

To:  Board of Selectmen

From: Jesse Steadman — Town Planner

Date: 3.10.2021

Re:  Making Connections Pilot Program | Inter-Municipal Agreement

Introduction

The Purpose of this memo is to request the Town’s commitment to join an Inter-Municipal Agreement
between the Towns of Sudbury, Acton, Bolton, Boxboro, Carlisle and Stow for the purpose of developing
and implementing a state funded transportation pilot program called “Making Connections™ and to be
implemented locally as Go STOW!. The Making Connections program is focused on connecting

seniors, people with disabilities, financially vulnerable residents, and veterans to health services,
community resources, and economic opportunities with on-demand transportation services via contracts
with Uber and Lyfi to offer subsidized ride service.

Program Overview

In the spring of 2019 the participating Towns were awarded a Community Compact Best Practices grant by
the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, to create a regional program of on-demand transportation pilots.
Since that time, MAPC has been providing technical assistance in the startup process, which involved
crafting an Inter-municipal Agreement (IMA) to be entered into by and between the participating Towns.
Participating communities used a portion of the funding to hire the transportation planning firm, Nelson
Nygaard, to play the role of the Program Manager and assist communities in rolling out their pilot
programs.

Inter-Municipal Agreement

The IMA document is based upon similar agreements involving municipalities throughout the
Commonwealth, but has been tailored to the Making Connections program. Through this IMA, each Town
can craft an individualized Pilot Program that utilizes ride-hailing applications, such as Uber and Lytt, as
well as taxi companies, to augment the existing COA transportation services, and specifically, to provide
subsidized rides for residents at times when the Town’s service is not running. As you can see in the
attached Community Compact Grant Application, the policy goal of the Making Connections program is to
create a framework for gathering data on community transportation needs and to disseminate that data to
our Regional Transit Authorities as a way to justify and incentivize future service expansion in our region.

Joining the IMA does not obligate the Town to expend any funds, nor definitively take part in a pilot.
Rather, it allows staff to continue to support and develop the program and work with other Departments to
determine the best pilot program for Stow to propose and implement.

The Board of Selectmen previously approved a disclosure agreement for KP Law, to acknowledge KP
Law’s dual obligations to both the Town of Stow and Sudbury in reviewing and approving the IMA
language.

I'look forward to further discussion with the Board of Selectmen on this matter.



Intermunicipal Agreement for the Making the Connections Program

This Intermunicipal Agreement (hereinafter “Agreement”), is entered into by and between the Towns of
Sudbury, Acton, Bolton, Carlisle, Concord, Lincoln, Maynard, Stow, and Weston hereinafter referred to
collectively as “Municipalities”, and individually as a “Municipality”, this___ day of ;
2021, as follows:

WHEREAS, the Town of Sudbury was awarded a Community Compact Best Practices grant by the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts to create a multijurisdictional program of on-demand transportation
pilots, called Making the Connections (grant application with tasks in Exhibit A, and hereinafter
“Pl‘()gl‘am”);

WHEREAS, this Program focuses on connecting seniors, people with disabilities, financially
vulnerable residents, and veterans to health services, community resources, and economic opportunities with
on-demand transportation services;

WHEREAS, many communities offer some variety of on-demand or reservation-required paratransit,
and some offer general public vans or commuter shuttles, there are times when these services do not cover all
transportation needs; it is these unmet needs the Program will attempt to meet through pilot services, and will
collect data to determine the need and feasibility of creating new transit services;

WHEREAS, the Municipalities desire to share the services of a Program Manager for the Program;

WHEREAS, the Town of Sudbury, entering the Community Compact Best Practices agreement with
the Commonwealth of Massachusetts is willing and capable of managing the Community Compact grant and
obtaining the services of the Program Manager;

WHEREAS, each Municipality has the authority to enter into this Agreement pursuant to G.L. c. 40,
s. 4A;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration the mutual covenants set forth herein and for other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto covenant and
agree as follows:

1. Making the Connections Community Compact. There is hereby established a collaborative of the
Parties to be known as “Making the Connections Community Compact”, which shall hereinafter
be referred to as the “Compact”. The Compact, acting by and through a Steering Committee and
Program Manager will coordinate, manage, and direct the activities of the parties with respect to
the subject matter of the Community Compact Grant Agreement between the Town of Sudbury
and the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, attached hereto as “Exhibit A” and incorporated herein,
and other programs and serves related thereto.

>

Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the date set forth above and shall expire
when the Community Compact Best Practices agreement entered by and between the Town of
Sudbury and the Commonwealth of Massachusetts expires, which is currently scheduled to expire
on May 21, 2021, or when the funds for the Program are no longer available, whichever is earlier
or when terminated in accordance with this Agreement, but in no event shall the Term of this
Agreement exceed twenty-five (25) years.

[

Lead Municipality. During the term of this agreement, the Town of Sudbury, acting as the Lead
Municipality, shall oversee the Program and the Program Manager, including hiring the Program

Page 1 of 13



[*

L

[o

Manager, subject to the approval of the Steering Committee. As the Lead Municipality, Sudbury
shall act for the Compact with respect to all grant applications to be submitted and gifts and grants
received collectively by the Parties. Sudbury shall act as the Parties’ purchasing agent pursuant to
G.L.c. 7, §22B, for all contracts duly authorized by the Steering Committee to be entered into
collectively by the Parties. Final approval of any such contract is subject to approval of the
Steering Committee and appropriation by each party, to the extent required.

Program Manager. The Town of Sudbury, as Lead Municipality, shall contract with an individual
or firm, subject to the approval of the Steering Committee, who shall perform all necessary fiscal
and administrative functions necessary to provide the services contemplated under this Agreement
all in accordance with the policies and procedures established by the Steering Committee, as set
forth herein. The Program Manager will be an independent consultant, with their services paid for
entirely from the allocated amount within the Community Compact Best Practices grant, or such
other funds as may be received by the Compact from time-to-time. The Town of Sudbury, with
the approval of the Steering Committee, shall have the ability to relieve the Program Manager of
their duties and replace it with another individual or firm.

Steering Committee. There shall exist a Steering Committee (the “Committee™) comprised of one
(1) representative from each Municipality, who shall be appointed by the appropriate appointing
authority of that Municipality. The Steering Committee will work to mutually guide the Program in
accordance with Exhibit A. Within one (1) calendar year of the starting date of the Program
Manager the Steering Committee shall mutually develop the goals of the Program, which shall
generally conform to the stated goals of the grant proposal as set forth in Exhibit A, and
guidelines to evaluate how well the Program has met these goals. The Steering Committee shall
meet as needed, and at least quarterly. The Program Manager, with direction from the Town of
Sudbury as the Lead Municipality, shall prepare and send to each Municipality a quarterly status
report at least one (1) week prior to the quarterly meeting. The Town of Sudbury, or its designee,
shall maintain the files and notes of the Steering Committee meetings.

Each member of the Committee shall be entitled to one (1) vote. A majority of members of the
Committee shall constitute a quorum for the purpose of transacting business. A quorum of the
Committee may act by a majority of those present and voting. Any action of the Committee shall
be made in a duly noticed meeting held in accordance with the provisions of the Massachusetts
Open Meeting Law, G.L. c. 30A, §18-25, including the requirements for posting notice and
keeping minutes.

Program Participation. Each Municipality as part of this Agreement shall participate in the
Program as follows:

a. The Municipality will either join an existing on-demand transportation pilot, or will create a
new transportation pilot consistent with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, that will
address the mobility and access needs noted in this Agreement, and that is approved by the
Steering Committee.

b. The Municipality will be a member of the Steering Committee as established pursuant to this
Agreement.

c. The Municipality will ensure the representative to the Steering Committee and/or other staff
representatives will attend any required training sessions and will participate in the Steering
Committee meetings (either in-person or via remote access) throughout the life of the
Program.

Page 2 of 13



=

o=

d. The Municipality will work with and through their respective TNC contractor(s) to ensure the
collection of the necessary data as agreed to by the Steering Committee to help determine the
trip needs, origins, and destinations that will help scale additional transportation programs
beyond the pilot, and to help determine how well the pilot has met the goals of the Program.

e. The Municipality shall have the authority to determine eligibility for riders in its jurisdiction
(e.g., residents or workers within its municipal or service boundaries, or clients for their
services) as part of the Program.

f.  The Municipality, in determining ride eligibility, will prioritize rides when and where existing
transportation (including CrossTown Connect, Council on Aging, MBTA, or Regional Transit
Authorities) is not in service, or the time required to access such transportation is not possible,
to ensure the Program provides a complementary transportation service, and does not replace
existing transportation services.

g. The Municipality will help promote and market the Program to the clients and community
residents served.

Payment. Notwithstanding the terms of this Agreement, no party shall be obligated to incur any
financial cost above the amount made available to the Compact through grants and gifts or other
sources, unless the financial obligation is supported by an appropriation made in accordance with
law. The Committee may authorize a disbursement of funds to reimburse any member
Municipality that incurs costs in creating and/or operating a transportation pilot program consistent
with the terms of this Agreement and Exhibit A, and/or for any program, service, or benefit
consistent with the terms of this Agreement and Exhibit A. If a Municipality intends to draw on
funds authorized by the Committee, the Municipality will submit monthly invoices to the Town of
Sudbury for reimbursement from the Community Compact funds for the Program. The Town of
Sudbury will pay the invoice within 30 days, subject to the availability of funds; provided,
however, that Sudbury shall not be obligated to supply any funding or incur any cost in excess of
the amounts made available to the Compact through grants and gifts or other sources appropriated
for the purposes of this Agreement. Any funds contributed by the Minuteman Advisory Group on
Interlocal Coordination (MAGIC) shall only be used for pilots serving MAGIC member
municipalities.

Pursuant to G.L. c. 40, §4A, any funds received by the Compact or the Town of Sudbury pursuant
to this Agreement, shall be deposited with the Treasurer of the Town of Sudbury and held as a
separate account and may be expended, with the approval of the Committee, under the provisions
of G.L. c. 44, §53A, for contribution toward the cost of the Compact only.

Pursuant to G.L. c. 40, §4A, any party may, but shall not be required to, raise money by any
lawful means to further the purposes of the Compact and any such funds shall be held by Sudbury
and expended pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

Individual party costs incurred outside the scope of this Agreement and specific to the needs of
that party will be borne solely by that party.

Addition of New Municipalities to Agreement. Any municipality, not a part of this Agreement,
may petition the parties involved in the Agreement to join the Agreement if authorized by its
approving authority as set forth in G.L. c. 40, §4A. In order to approve the addition of a new
entity to the Agreement, no less than a two-thirds vote of the Committee shall be required.

Page 3 of 13



[©

Withdrawal. Any Municipality other than the Town of Sudbury as Lead Municipality, by a vote
of its respective approving authority as set forth in G.L. c. 40, §4A, may withdraw from this
Agreement with the provision of at least three (3) months prior written notice to the Lead
Municipality.

The Town of Sudbury as Lead Municipality, by a vote of its Select Board, may withdraw from
this Agreement upon the provision of at least three (3) months prior written notice to all of the
participating Municipalities. , Prior to the expiration of said three month period, a new Lead Party
shall thereafter be designated by the Committee, by a vote of the representatives of the remaining
parties, not including Sudbury. Prior to the effective date of its withdrawal, Sudbury shall transfer
all funds held pursuant to this Agreement to the new Lead Party as designated by the Committee.

Upon such withdrawal, the Program Manager shall prepare full statements of outstanding unpaid
financial obligations under this Agreement and present the same to the Committee, which shall
authorize disbursement of any such funds to the withdrawing Municipality for payment within
thirty (30) days thereafter.

10. Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by a vote of a majority of the Parties’
representatives of the Committee, at a meeting of the Committee called for that purpose; provided
the representative’s vote has been authorized by the approving authority as set forth in G.L. ¢. 40,
§4A. Any termination vote shall not be effective until the passage of at least sixty (60) days and
until the parties have agreed to an equitable allocation of all remaining costs, expenses and assets.

11. Conflict Resolution. The Steering Committee may hold additional meetings to discuss and resolve
any conflicts that may arise including, but not limited to, disagreements regarding the needs of each
Municipality. Notwithstanding any resolution suggested by the Committee, the parties shall reserve
all rights that shall have in law or in equity to enforce the terms of this Agreement or any disputes
pertaining thereto.

12. Financial Safeguards. The Town of Sudbury as Lead Municipality shall maintain separate,
accurate, and comprehensive records of all services performed for each of the Municipalities and
hereto, and all contributions received from the Municipalities.

13. Assignment. None of the Municipalities shall assign or transfer any of its rights or interests in or
to this Agreement, or delegate any of its obligations hereunder, without the prior written consent
of all of the other Municipalities.

14. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended only in writing pursuant to a vote by all
Municipalities, duly authorized thereunto.

15. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, or if any such term is so held when applied to any particular
circumstance, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of
this Agreement, or affect the application of such provision to any other circumstances, and the
remaining provisions hereof shall not be affected and shall remain in full force and effect.

16. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, construed, and enforced in accordance
with the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

17. Headings. The paragraph headings herein are for convenience only, are no part of this
Agreement, and shall not affect the interpretation of this Agreement.

Page 4 of 13



18. Notices. Any notice permitted or required hereunder to be given or served on any Municipality
shall be in writing signed in the name of or on behalf of the Municipality giving or serving the
same. Notice shall be deemed to have been received at the time of actual receipt of any hand
delivery or three (3) business days after the date of any properly addressed notice sent by mail as
set forth below.

Town of Sudbury
Town Manager

278 Old Sudbury Road
Sudbury, MA 01776

Town of Acton
Town Manager
472 Main Street
Acton, MA 01720

Town of Bolton
Town Administrator
663 Main Street
Bolton, MA 01740

Town of Carlisle
Town Administrator
66 Westford Street
Carlisle, MA 01741

Town of Concord
Town Manager

PO Box 535
Concord, MA 01742

Town of Lincoln
Town Administrator
16 Lincoln Road
Lincoln, MA 01773

Town of Maynard
Town Administrator
195 Main Street
Maynard, MA 01754

Town of Stow
Town Administrator
380 Great Road
Stow, MA 01775

Town of Weston
Town Manager

PO Box 378
Weston, MA 02493

Page Sof 13



19. Complete Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the
Municipalities concerning the subject matter hereof, superseding all prior agreements and
understandings. There are no other agreements or understandings between the Municipalities
concerning the subject matter hereof. Each Municipality acknowledges it has not relied on any
representations by any other Municipality or by anyone acting or purporting to act for another
Municipality or for whose actions any other Municipality is responsible, other than the express,
written representations set forth herein.

Exhibit A: Proposal to Community Compact Cabinet Best Practices Program: MAGIC Communities’ On-
Demand Transportation Pilot — Making the Connections

WITNESS OUR HANDS AND SEALS as of the first date written above.

TOWN OF SUDBURY SELECT BOARD:

Janie W. Dretler

Jennifer Roberts

Daniel E. Carty

Charles Russo

William Schineller

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS
Middlesex County, ss:

On this day of , 2020, before me, the undersigned notary
public, personally appeared , and proved to me
through satisfactory evidence of identification which was to be the person whose

name is signed on the proceeding or attached document, and acknowledged to me that he signed it

voluntarily for its stated purpose.

Notary Public
My Commission Expires:

Page 6 of 13



Town of Acton
Town of Bolton
Town of Carlisle
Town of Concord
Town of Lincoln
Town of Maynard
Town of Stow

Town of Weston

Page 7 of 13



EXHIBIT A
Proposal to Community Compact Cabinet Best Practices Program:
MAGIC Communities’ On-Demand Transportation Pilot — Making the Connections

Municipal Designation: Town

City or Town Name: Sudbury

Contact: Alice Sapienza, DBA

Contact Phone: 978 443 2878

Contact Email:_alicesapienza@verizon.net

Compact Signatory: Robert Haarde

Signatory Title: Chair, Board of Selectmen

Best Practice Area #1: Age and Dementia Friendly Best Practice: “Develop policies and ser-
vices to improve elder economic security and help people age in community, such as... transpor-
tation for non-drivers...”

Are you applying for this best practice with other communities? Yes

Why did you choose this best practice and what assistance would you need to accomplish this
best practice?

Why did you choose this best practice?

In the Minuteman Advisory Group on Interlocal Coordination (MAGIC) region generally, between
11% and 27% of residents are 65 years of age or older; in 2030, this will jump to between 14% and
36%. Area Agencies on Aging (AAA) report the top unmet need is transportation for

medical, social, recreational, and other requirements. According to Centers for Disease Control
and Prevention (CDC) data: (1) 60% of adults 65 years and older report at least one basic action
difficulty or complex activity limitation; (2) about 15% of adults report hearing trouble; and (3)
about 9% of adults report vision trouble. Cognitive disability among seniors in our region averages
15%, and several towns are characterized as “vulnerable™ according to the CDC’s Social
Vulnerability indices for disability and transportation.

Studies of individual MAGIC towns underscore the urgency of transportation needs, such as the
recently completed livable assessment of Sudbury:

e 42% of residents with a participation limitation reported they “had missed, canceled, or
rescheduled a medical appointment due to lack of transportation.”
e Nearly half of residents 60+ are not satisfied with their “ability to get where they want to

s

go.”
e When questioned in a public forum on results, the principal investigator answered that the
town’s biggest need was “transportation.”

The town of Carlisle completed a community health needs assessment in 2017, with similar re-
sults:

e Almost 25% of Carlisle residents age 65 or older have a disability.

Page 8 of 13



e More than 50% of those with a disability noted that they had problems with mobility.

e Nearly 50% of residents did not have a relative nearby to rely upon for help.

e More than 50% of survey respondents had concerns about the lack of transportation op-
tions.

e To improve transportation, the assessment recommended exploring pooling of resources and
funding opportunities.

Data from recent community health assessments in the town of Acton illustrate the same chal-
lenges. The lack of access to transportation is a significant barrier to seniors and especially to the
most vulnerable (including seniors), who experience limited access to food pantries and grocery
stores; to employment opportunities; to medical services; and to social opportunities. More than
20% of Acton households earn less than $50,000 per year, and nearly 25% of households qualify
for state-aided housing. The three most critical needs facing veterans are financial stability, ability
to manage money, and transportation, primarily to employment opportunities.

In addition, domestic violence reports in Acton and Boxborough are higher than in other area
towns. Although victims benefit from a strong partnership between the police departments and the
Domestic Violence Services Network (DVSN), victims lack transportation to jobs and to the court
house; to legal and immigration assistance; and to secure housing

This application—Making the Connections—is submitted to the CCC by Acton, Bolton, Box-
borough, Carlisle, Stow, and Sudbury, acting as lead municipality. We are focusing on seniors,
people with disabilities, financially vulnerable residents, and veterans, with the objective of
providing them with transportation services to health and community resources as well as eco-
nomic opportunities. We chose this best practice, because we have more than adequate data to
prove that transportation needs are urgent.

Recognizing the regional importance of the above transit needs, MAGIC towns voted in 2018 that
Metropolitan Area Planning Council (MAPC) provide technical assistance to determine what
types of on-demand transit might meet the needs of the communities, and provided up to $10,000
from their common fund for this work. It should be emphasized that, in April 2018, all MAGIC
towns were admitted to the AARP Age and Dementia Friendly Network and committed to focus
initially on housing and transportation initiatives.

What assistance would you need to accomplish this best practice?

A unique challenge this pilot seeks to address is transportation for non-drivers, who live in rural
towns and “rural” areas of suburban communities. A new report from AARP stated: “Rural areas
are aging at a faster rate than the general population; [and] older adults also disproportionately live
in rural areas.... [Aging] in place can prove difficult in rural regions where spread-out geographies
and a lack of public transportation make accessing needed supportive services and amenities
difficult.”

Page 9 of 13



Indeed, the above data illustrate that our target population is at risk of isolation, loss of work, re-
duced access to medical care, etc. Our pilot is thus designed to address the gaps and, simultane-
ously, to collect demand data that can help regional transit authorities provide effective and cost-
efficient services in the future. By partnering with vehicle providers that utilize appropriate dis-
patch and operational software, the collaborating communities will finally be able to quantify such
data as ride numbers, destinations, points of origin, time, etc. At the end of the pilot, we expect to
identify potential hubs and fixed route services that regional transit authorities could serve
economically and, at the same time, increase equity and inclusiveness as features of age and
dementia friendly communities.

Using data from this pilot, we intend to (1) explore the future applicability of shared microtransit
platforms to optimize transit programs and regional cooperation in the larger MAGIC subregion of
the MAPC, and (2) ensure the sustainability and continuous improvement of regional trans-
portation, particularly to our most needy residents. By adopting new and useful ride-hailing
technologies in a three-RTA region, we overcome the hurdle of providing and funding inter-RTA
transportation.

To accomplish our goals, we are seeking $80,000 to support four major tasks:

Task 1. Coordination: The pilot will be governed by a steering committee composed of repre-
sentatives from each participating community, as well as from Cross Town Connect. Regional
transit authorities — including MetroWest RTA and Lowell RTA, which provide senior and fixed
route public transit in portions of the area, and representatives from the Massachusetts Bay Transit
Authority (MBTA), which provides commuter rail services in the area, will be invited to
participate. MAPC will provide technical expertise. This committee will meet regularly and, at the
start of the pilot, will:

e Identify “small win” options within and across towns addressing priority needs, pressing
gaps, and key preferences.

e Determine target subgoups, geographic coverage, eligible pickup locations and destina-
tions, days, hours, etc., and rider eligibility requirements.

e Develop policies, including interjurisdictional agreements among participating munici-
palities (likely in the forms of memoranda of agreements) and, with MAPC, determine
clear roles among the agencies.

e Procure project manager to oversee daily operations of the pilot.

e Create a list of possible taxi, bus, livery and TNC providers and intersections with Council
on Aging and RTA services (see Task 2).

e Describe same-day, door-to-door options in detail.

e Qutline Plan/Do/Study/Act (PDSA) continuous quality improvement policies and pro-
cesses for each option. This includes marketing and outreach plans to help spread the word
of the new services.

Page 10 of 13



Implementation of this pilot will help fill gaps in existing public transit services within the MAGIC
subregion for weekday needs such as medical trips, employment, and social services, as well as
connections to existing transit and paratransit services. Other gaps to be addressed are evening and
weekend transportation needs. The steering committee will establish policies informing rules for
trip eligibility, rider eligibility, geographic guidelines (eligible trip origins, destinations, etc.), time
of day rules, and maximum trip lengths and subsidies. A major objective is to find ways to extend
the reach of existing transit services (local shuttles, buses, and commuter rail), and particularly
serve areas without transit service, and not switch transit trips to ride-hailing. Included in this goal
is the provision of a sizable proportion of shared rides, to be determined by the steering committee
and embedded in emerging policies and procedures.

Implementation will include coordination with area RTAs and Councils on Aging and surveys of
pilot participants, to ensure the program provides additional coverage and does not shift riders
from existing services. As needed, the pilot will always be subject to modification of implemen-
tation policies and practices, to ensure it meets program goals.

Task 2. Procurement: After the goals, policies, metrics, and geography have been established, a
request for proposals will be developed and opened to transportation and technology providers, to
populate the pilot program. The procurement process will include a requirement for one or more of
the vendors to provide wheelchair accessible vehicles, ensuring that persons with disabilities have
service. The procurement process will also require the provision of multiple modes of requesting
services (e.g., smart device app, internet, telephone, walk-up), including possible concierge
service, in which a local organization takes care of securing rides for individuals who require that
level of assistance. The steering committee will provide input into the procurement process and
members will be involved in the selection process of the preferred vendor. MAPC will provide
technical assistance in the procurement process and in best policies and best practices on
contracting terms.

Simultaneous with procurement, the steering committee (in whole or in designated part) will:

e Explore voucher, gift certificate, bundling options, sponsorships, etc., to support rides and
help ensure future sustainability in the towns.

e Compile, from stakeholder management activities, likely demands or opposition; assess,
craft responsive strategies; assign implementation responsibility.

o Assign PDSA oversight responsibility for options. This will entail continuous STUDY of
real time outcomes using established measures and modifying parameters as needed
(ACT), to improve.

e Craft policies to assure continuity and effectiveness of documentation and communications.

Task 3. Implementation of Pilot and Monitoring of Progress: As noted above, a Plan/Do/Study /Act
process of continuous improvement will assure real-time effectiveness and efficiency. Be-

Page 11 of 13



cause of the latter process, data sharing on rides, including origins and destinations, time of day,
trip types, and costs are important components, and a data sharing agreement will be a key portion
of the contract with the vendor. Given the importance of the customer in transit endeavors, rider
surveys and other forms of feedback will be instituted. MAPC will provide additional technical
support on the data analysis and rider surveys, along with steering committee members with quality
improvement expertise.

Task 4. Pilot Assessment and Development of Future Initiatives: At the end of the pilot, the
steering committee will review data from all PDSA documentation, provide summary analytics,
and compile lessons learned. The data on trip demands will be a critical input to developing future
initiatives that will close gaps for regional residents by improving the effectiveness and efficiency
of (1) existing Cross Town Connect services, (2) CoA senior transportation, and (3) RTA services,
likely in the form of a future microtransit initiative and revised ride-hailing partnerships.

As noted above, MAPC will provide technical assistance and will provide required staff time using
its existing resources. Specific new expenditures required for this pilot are the following (total:
$80,000):

e Project manager (part time), to manage initiative tasks and subtasks, reporting to the steering
committee. Because this is a multi-jurisdictional pilot, it is vital to have one individual
identified as responsible for day-to-day operations. This individual will work with the
steering committee as a whole and with each individual participating municipality on rider
and trip eligibility, cost sharing arrangements, and provide assistance in booking trips and
monitoring the data to ensure the pilot is meeting its goals. The eligible project manager will
be an individual with municipal and transportation operations expertise. While this
individual will likely be a municipal employee or contractor with one of the participating
municipalities, we expect this individual will have several temporary spaces from which to
work and travel among the towns. Cost: 845,000, to cover labor and travel expenses.

e Marketing and outreach staff for the towns. In these rural communities, many of the proposed
transportation services are new. To ensure effectiveness of the pilot, research shows that
communication, advocacy, and customer support are vital. Although printed materials and
social media will be an important component, we propose having individuals who know and
understand riders and can provide help as needed to serve as community advocates. Some
advocates may live in affordable developments in the towns; others may be retired seniors
active in their communities. They can help book trips, coordinate with the vendors, and
(under supervision of the project manager) compile customer input for the steering
committee. Cost: 15,000 to support part time labor, plus travel, printing, and other direct
costs.

Page 12 of 13



e Matching subsidies. The towns involved in the pilot are expected to seek their own subsi-
dies in the form of donations, mitigation funds, Community Health Needs Assessment
funds, etc. However, as experience is gained in the implementation, additional funds may
be necessary. We have prepared estimates of ride-hail ride costs (based on the CAR expe-
rience) and weekly numbers of rides, based on several subsidy assumptions. Cost: $20,000

to supplement town subsidy funds.

Additional details for this application may be found in the following document: “E&R grant exhibit
1 "

Page 13 of 13



Disposition of Surplus Goods
and Equipment



March 25, 2021

To: Honorable Town of Stow Select Board,

This packet is for your consideration/vote to declare
the listed items in this packet for Disposition of Surplus
Goods and Equipment Valued at less than $10,000 at
your earliest convenience, so we may proceed to the

next phase in the process.

Custodian Geoff Beharrell was authorized by me,
Craig Martin, P.E., to organize and prepare this packet
and all aspects of these items, per the Town of Stow
Disposition Policy , adopted 10/27/2020.

Thank You,

L Dz

Craig Martin, P.E. Building Facilities Director 5/5“9‘7’/‘




Town of Stow
Disposition Policy

Disposition of Surplus Goods and Equipment Valued at Less than $10,000

1. If the surplus property is determined to have resale or salvage value less than $10,000, and it
is determined that no other department has an interest in the property, the respective
department head must request that the Board of Selectmen authorize the disposition of such
surplus goods and equipment. Then the goods may be disposed of pursuant to the procedure
set forth below in subsection A, B, or C.

A. Solicit bids from at least 2 companies that deal in such property, maintaining a written
record of the names and addresses of the companies from which a bid was solicited,;

B. Advertise the surplus property for sale on the town website or on any internet site that
offers such property for sale at least 14 calendar days prior to the sale. Any such
advertisement shall state the sale date, the date by which a sealed bid shall be submitted
to the town, and shall prescribe a format in which a sealed bid shall be submitted (written
and delivered to a prescribed address).

C. Auction the surplus goods off on Municibid.com. Municibid is an online auction website
for government agencies, schools, authorities and utilities to sell their surplus and
forfeitures directly to the public. All auctions take place online and are available to bid 24
hours a day.

2 If the surplus goods or equipment has no resale or salvage value, the department shall dispose
of such property at the least cost to the town. In the case of electronic or computer
equipment, the items must be sent to a certified recycling company who will provide proof of
data destruction where appropriate.

3 If the surplus property is determined to have resale or salvage value greater than $10,000, it

must first be declared as surplus by the Board of Selectmen, and then may be disposed of in
conformance with procedures of Massachusetts General Law Chapter 30B.

Town of Stow adopted 10/27/2020 Page 1



Town of Stow, Disposition of Surplus Goods & Equipment Valued at

‘Less than $10,000.

Description Model

1) Lenovo Desktop ThinkCentre M83

2) Dell Desktop D12M
3) Dell Desktop D12M

4) Dell Desktop DCSM

5) Dell Color Printer C1660W
6) HP Officejet All in one 6110

7) Panasonic Toughbook CF-31

8) Panasonic Toughbook CF-31

9) Panasonic Toughbook CF-31
10) Panasonic Toughbook CF-31

11) Brother Intelefax 4100e FAX4100E
12) Dell Desktop DCNE
13) Linksys 5 Port Router EFAHO5W
14) Asante 5 Port Router FH305
15) HP Pavilion Monitor F1703
16) HP Pavilion Monitor F1703
17) HP Monitor 1502

18) Dell Monitor E193FPc
19) Acer LCD Monitor AL1717 F
20) Compaq Monitor S7500
21) Dell Monitor E771p
22) Emerson 19in TV/VCR VT1922

23) Compaq Monitor S$7500

Serial # Department
MGOOFRQ3 Police.
4TBQSW1 Police.
HW98PS1 Police.
BNYXGC1 Police.
898E6649 Police.
MY3BFH768) Police.
1KTSA28688 Police.
1JTSA25730 Police.
2GTYA80808 Police.
1DKYB63450 Police.
U61639L7)736987 Police.
CwWJ5JG1 Police.
RA13045000635 Police.
051D502 Police.
MYAHQOBO020 Police.
CNCHROC672 Police.
CNC4221156 Police.
CNOG84326418057F13CS Police.
ETL7208207808245CB427C Police.
226CP76PG75 Police.
MX0419TG478011ABHO5Y  Police.
451-41009103 Police.
226CP76PG630 Police.



24) Dell Monitor E771p MX0419TG478011ABHOSF
25) Compaq Monitor §7500 226CP76PF769

26) Compaq Server Agency Series ES1017  D232FRT1D014

27) Compag Monitor §720 144CP43AB175

28) Dell Monitor E173FPc CNOF503564180CB1BVS
29) HP Monitor 1530 PE1235 CNP422BL7W

30) Dell Server ECMO1 JR1F4F1

31) Ativa Shredder 391S 310145852

32) Belkin Omniview Pro3 F1DA108Z 0920000027

33) Box of Computer cables/adapters/mouse

34) Box of 7 various keyboards

35) Staples Monitor SP7106 9046CVA001047

36) 33 Wooden chairs w/fabric padding

37) KonicaMinolta Copier bizhub250 FK-50306104812N

38) 4 HP ink cartridges #311A for copier

39) 6 Felt panel Art boards w/hardware

40) 2 -60x30 metal tables with formica top

41) 2 draw fireproof file cabinet on castors

42) 28 foldable voting booths invarious condition

43) Broad Air AC compressor BC36-14D241G-28S1RB

44) RUUD 40 gallon gas hot water heater ~ PROG405-40N RU6G2

45) Brother Electric Typewriter ~ ML300 E7K269445

46) 11 Foot Plow 1999 ? JB0O0S

47) 4 ink cartridge boxes HP 95, color/black

Police.
Police.
Police.
Police.
Police.
Police.
Police.
Police.
Police.
Police.
Police.
COA.
Selectboard.
Fire.
Fire.
Library.
TA office.
Treasurer.
Town Clerk.
Facilities.

Facilities.

Conservation.

Highway.

Health.



Town of Stow, Disposition of Surplus Goods & Equipment
Valued at'‘Over $10,000.

Description Model Serial # Department

1) 1941 Buffalo Springfield Pressure Cylinder Scarifier* Highway
Shop Number 4410

* Need to follow Massachusetts General Law Chapter 30B on this unit
since it’s most likely valued over $10,000. Will not be sold on
Municibids at this time with other items, but needs to be voted as
surplus to begin the process. The value of this is all over the place as
it’s a collectable machine. Comparable functioning machines are selling
for over $24,000, so need more research to determine value before

offering to public.



Town Meeting Discussion



TOWN MEETING DISCUSSION

What time do you want TM to begin?

What set-up do you want there to be?

¢ Recommendation to keep it the same as last year with both an indoor and outdoor
component

CONSENT CALENDAR

What items should be included?

(See current list and suggested additions)



Contents

INTRODUCTION TO THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 1ucvevisiuseessresssssssssessasssssosssssssssssssssesssssssssesasssnssssssssasssssonsssssssssessosesd
FISCAL YEAR 2020 BUDGET ANALY SIS PREVIEW oviviveieieteresiesisiaesssssescssssessssssssosssssssssssssssesssssssenssssssessonssesssssssas 6
FISCAL YEAR 2021 PROPOSED BUDGET AND WARRANT ANALYSISu0evteurueeeeersesreesssssssnsssssssesssersssssssssssssssssssssssses 9
ARTICLE 1. Reports of Selectmen and Other Officers and COMMUITIEES wov.veevereeereesresreeerereresessssssesesssssrsssns 14
ARTICLE 2. Reportsof:Special ComMuTtees .. msmias s s e i s it s vinisss ievase 15
ARTICLE 3. Wage and Salary Schedules for Fiscal YEar 2022 ...uuuvecvveeveeeeeseeeersssesesesessssessssssssssssssssssesoeseses 15
ARTICLE 4. General Budget for Fiscal Year 2022

BEGINNING OF CONSENT CALENDAR.........cooovictititeiteisteeseeeseneesssssssessssssesessssssesssesssssssssssssnssssssssesessesens
ARTICLE 5. Revolving Fund for InSpection FEes .....uvvercreirrererersericieseeensseseessassons

ARTICLE 6. Revolving Fund for Advanced Life SUPPOTT SCIVICES cuovuvviveriieirieeieiesiensesessesiesesesiasesissssesesssesens 32
ARTICLE 7. SwiffReach:911 Notification Systenmivusnanmsnasnamsmmsimmrsiimms s e 32
ARTICLER. "Weightsamt Measures TOSD oo oo oo i et i asansessarosne 32
ARTICLE 9. Transfer to Conservation FUNM ... .o.v.eceeeeecenvininiciinn e seeeeeesseeseesesesessssesssssssssesessssessssessssssnes 33
ARTICLE 10. Transfer from Wetlands Protection FUN ... v e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeesseseseseesesossessssssesenssesssssssees 33
ARTICLE 11. Addition to ConServation FUNM .........ec.eveieuimrieveiaesisissteisiensseesessessessesssssessssssssssssesasssessssssesssns 34
ARTICLE 12. Assabet River Water Chestinut CONtrol ... ociioseinrecenesseseesssesessssssssssssssssssssessssessssessenss 34
ARTICLE 13 Update of Property Valumtlons . i st 34
ARTICLE 14. Town Records Binding it REpair sosesssossisismusssssiiaiss st o sissiinrsmsmrironsasntomm 35
ARTICLE 15. Highway Road Machinery, Private Ways, and Municipal Parking LotS......o.ooovveeeeeveeevenereenn. 35
ARTICLE 16. Houschold Hazardous Waste ColCCON......cvovvvireererrereeesieeseseseeeeeeeesesssssssssessesssssssssrsssssessenes 35
ARTICLE 17. Municipal Solid Waste DISPOSAL...cv.evercurrerriniinseinreeesossssesssssessssessaessessessessesssssssessssesssssasnes 36
ARTICLE 18. Stow CUltural COUNCIl.c.cucesieireeiereenseiecessesesrsesiseissssesessssssssssessssssssssssesessesssssesssssssssessnsssensssens 36
B L h T — 36
ARTICLE 20. Holiday Decorations and LiZhting FUNU .....c...ovveverireesieeieeenseseesssseesssssssssssssssessessssssessenes 37
ARTICLE 21. Employee Educational INCEntive PrOZIam ....c.cvovovceveeiseeeesssissssssssesssssessssssssssssssesssssssssssess 37
ARTICLE 22. Audit of FInancial RECOTUS ..ovviiviirreiieerernrriisassssiiessessessssssessessosssssssssessossssssssssssssessssssssesseses 38

ARTICLE 23.
ARTICLE 24.
ARTICLE 25,
ARTICLE 26.

ARTICLE 27.
ARTICLE 28. Cunstrumon and M.unten‘mu of Water Holes for Firefighting 0|)crat|(ms ........................... 40
ARTICLE 29. Lake Boon Water Quality ReMEATAtiON .......coceveveueueereneirsiresissesestssosessssnensnesesssssessasnsnssssssseses 40
ARTICLE 30. Planning Board Engincering/Consulting and Master Plan EXPenses....o v evviovennreessseeenens 40
ARTICLE 31. Economic Development and Industrial Commission (EDEC ). eeeureeeeeevereeeeesessesssesssssssssses 41
ARTICLE 32. Planning Board Engineering/Consulting and Master Plan EXPensesS......ovvvvevvererevrermsesssesens 41
ARTICLE 33, Community Preservation EXPENSES ..o aereieseeissesessosseseeesessessessersessasessossssessesssssessenn 42
ARTICLE 34. Community Preservation RESCIVES. . i ereerrrrrereserereraerersrorssesssssseressensasssssssssssssssensesssssnnns 42
CONCLUSION OF CONSENT CALENDAR ....coviviiriteirnteenenesesessesassaesssssessessessonssssssssssssssesssssensersonsossens 42
ARTICLE 35, Capital ReqUESTS cuiosssvisioimmessissssisnsetersesseisssssiersssss i 5 ses 6 Saias s e s i s aiivvsatine 43
ARTICLE 36. Reauthorization of the OPEB Trust FUNG.....coouioiicverrieenenessiseresisienesssssesensssessssesssssssssssenss 44
ARTICLE 37. Transter to BtabuEation BBl s s ssiisis s sssasss st serssnsssesssssssan 45
ARTICLE 38; Lefil Servitel i it iismsmnisosiinrsssssssnsnsnssracan
ARTICLE 39. Implementation of MS4 Stormwater Permit Requirements ..
ARTICLE 40. On Board Diagnostics EQUIPMeEnt (OBD2)....covviviviirieienriniessesssssessossisssssssssssiessessessssessssnsenes
ARTICLE 41. :Cemetery Ground Protection Matyivwmsmvasnmsmersesavmims it st 46
ARTICLE 42. Shared Housing Se 'ices ............................................................................................................ 46
DRI TS NOISTMMIRIIIIIIINY ..............................cconsnsssssesrenerssssnsssrsessassnnnssssssssssssssesssssessssmsnssssosssssssssss 47
ARTICLE 44. Norfolk County Agr icultural High School ASSCSSMENT...ceiiiivieeerererrrrrenereeesinrseesasssnsssnsssresssses 47
ARTICLE 45, LaKe BOON PAFOl.......oovriieiiiniiriniiniereissnssnsissiesssarsssmssssstsrsrssssssassssssssssessssassssasssssessesssesnessnss 47
ARTICLE 46. Bylaws and Regulations amendment to change the Board of Selectmen Name.....o.veveeveecennnns 48
ARTICLE 47. Department of Ununplm MENEASSISEATICC. covsussuasanisnsssssuissss i o saesssoms wHTETTTT S BUEISS 48
W ARTICLE 48, Tax Tithe PROCCCAIES oo oooooooeo oo eeeeo e s s seessseeessessesseeneseesens s eeees 19

ad



ARTICLE 49. Online Permit and LICENSE FEES ..oovvvviiireersieeeeeeeeeseeeeseeesesseesesssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssessssssss 49

ARTICLE 50. Online Budgeting SOTtWaAI€....euveureuceerierereesereseseserssesessesssesssesssessssssssssssssessssssesssssssssssssssessssssss 49
ARTICLE 51. Salary Reserve Line to Implement Salary and Classification Changes .........oeveeevevvvesresrssennns 49
ARTICLE 52. Acceptance of Great Road Land DONAtion............ceeeeevererevsccssesenssnssssnsssssssssessssssssssssssssssssss 30
ARTICLE. 53, CPA ARTIULE sommsussvssssssisbsisis it i s i s ssstatmtomresrmsoroorsarms s soral 50
ARTICLE 35. CPA ARTICLE.........ccooccieemmionmissmnsrsmsaneressrmsssssassssssssassnssssssosssssenssassssessossenssssasssssssssssasssassssens 50
ARTICLE ST.coitriitenientensieninsnssssiesssnssssssssssssssssssssasssssssssssessanssssssessssnsssssssssnssesensesasssenssesssessssasssssssnssesssssssssssne 50
ARTTCLE S, cusmossssmorrvesessivessesoresss ooty s s i i e il Ay 55 551 b pous A ek 50
ARTICLE 60. PFAS (Per and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances) Remediation EXpenses. ... eeeeeeeeeveeeeevesseeseners 50
ATCTTCLE 6 Ltursuvsssomsn i i i D U e iiaisiatievesrsnnmbins 1om o snens nss apsbenss s s s ten s o 4 RSP VE GRS E O AR
ARTTCLIE 2000055503008 5000410500504 35A 946k s 350 mes e Semnnsessansassoss e ussvesssiswssnn sus o svunvbeErv e HoREN RSN OUSS
CONSENT CALENDAR PROCEDURES .......oooiiietninicreneinreieseesesereseraeresssesssssssssssnsessssssssssssessssssssssessssssnssens
CONSENT CALENDAR MOTIONS .....coriiuererntninicnsesnsnsesssssssesssssssnsnsstnssssssssssssssesessssnssssenssssssssessasssssssssss
ARTICEE N ReSErve Ol voosevmsesme o o ss s s s e s et s s nntns <
ARTICLE 6. Revolving Fund for Inspection Fees..............

ARTICLE 7. Revolving Fund for Advanced Life SUPPOIT SCIVICES .ommieriiirecroeiereeeseseenesesssseseesseeesssesssssses 54
ARTICLE 8. SwiftReach 911 NOtifiCation SYSEEM .....c.everiiveeerieeeeceeesisinsciesissssesssssessssessessssssssssnssssssssssssssssssss 54
ARTICLE 9. Weights and Measures TeSNE ..o reiieirieesrsressinsresessssessssssssssssssssessssosssssssssessosssssssssssensnsses 54
ARTICLE 10. Transfer:to-Conservation Bl ... s s e i s i ssvess 58
ARTICLE 11. Transfer from Wetlands Protection FUN(..........icusssssssrssmsssssecsssmsmssrmssssnssesssnssenssssrsssssosaserss 58
ARTICLE 12. Addition t0 CONSErvation FUNG ........cceeerreereeeirserssssessesssessssssssesssssessssonserssssonsssssssssssessssssssasssens 55
ARTICLE 13. Update of Property VAIUAtIONS .....covvvvreeirreinrisesesessniseesessesssesssssssssosessssessasssssessessonssenssessssses 33
ARTICLE 14. Town Records Binding and REPAIT ... ..ccvieiieiireiisreserssnsessresssssssssssssssesssaesesssseresssssssensses 55
ARTICLE 15, Highway Road Machinery and Private WAaYs .....cvceeiveiviesisesisessesosssssensessssssssssssssssssssssnssnss 39
ARTICLE 16. Highway Road Construction/Authorization to Expend State Funds (Chapter 90) for Public
ARTICLE 17. Household Hazardous Waste CollECTION c.ovveieeiiveeriinensensenissiesseseeseessenesssssssssssssssessssssessasees 30
ARTICLE 18. Municipal Solid Waste DISPOSl ... vcrerrerererrnresiersesssssesisesseesesesssssssssssssssssesssessssssssesssnssesssens 56
ARTICLE 19. Public HEalth NUESE...c.covicreieceinrceersereneraeessrssssssssssessssssssssssesssssssssensssssesssssssessesessssssenserss 30
ARTICLE 20. Stow Cultural Couneil. .o sammsms s 56
ARTICEE 21, Stow TV EXPenseli s i s smssss s st 56
ARTICLE 22, Holiday Decorations and LIighting FUN® .......couieeeereiiisiessersissiesssssesssssesessosesssssssessessssssssessessens 57
ARTICLE 23. Employee Educational INCEntive PrOZrail ... o eeererereeresersieesceneeessesssssssrsessesssserersessrssseres 37
ARTICLE 24. Audit of FINancial RECOIUS cuvviirereuerierieieicreeeceentcsessesseensssesssssasssssssesssesssssesssssnesssassssssasssessnes 57
ARTICLE 25. Transfer to OPEB Trust Fund Services ......ccovvvveverrsrcrresreersnssenns 57
ARTICLE 26. Transfer from MWPAT (Harvard Acres Wells) Loan ReCCIPES....oeiuruevrivveieieneereresesnesens 57
ARTICLE. 27. Water System: E X PeniSesi s sy somias s v B 57
ARTICLE 28. Board of Selectmen’s Small PUrchases FUNM c..vvvrivvcvecreierieneersresseseesesssessesaesssssosessessssesees 37
ARTICLE 29. Lake Boon Water Quality REMEdiation ........cccveveeieiiiriiieiieninsissinissessssssossosssessssssssssssessssaes 57
ARTICLE 30. Planning Board Engineering/Consulting and Master Plan EXPenses.....owveereeeenseeensernenen. 58
ARTICLE 31. Community Preservation EXPeNSES ... e irererierierssrssesseseessessessersersaessessesssssssssssssssssesssssssses 58
ARTICLE 32. Community Preservation ReSCIVES. ..o eiierieirerisracsesersessessersesssissessesssessessssssssssessessossonsosses 58



FY2022 Budget Discussion



Town of Stow
Office of the

Town Administrator
380 Great Road
Stow, MA 01775
Denise M. Dembkoski Tel: 978-897-2927
Town _Administrator
tow nadiministrator ¢ sLow-1ma. 2ov

To: Select Board, Finance Committee, and Stow Residents
From: Denise M. Dembkoski, Town Administrator
Re:  FY22 Budget Recommendations

Date:  April 6, 2021

The Fiscal Year 2022 (FY22) Operating Budget process provided an opportunity for management
to undertake an honest assessment of town functions to determine what is working and what
changes are necessary. Some of the recommended changes contained within this memorandum
will have cost implications for the FY22 budget. With that said, it is important to note that
staffing needs in some departments have not kept up with the Town’s operational needs or
staffing levels within peer communities. The choices that are outlined within this memorandum
are the accumulation of years of conservative budgeting, which while assisting the town in
limiting our expenditure outlay and increased our Unused Levy Capacity to $2 4M, has created
other operational issues within the Town. Regardless of the decisions made for FY22, the staffing
issues outlined within this memorandum will need to eventually be addressed to provide
employees and residents with quality resources

In this proposed budget, there are three new staff positions being recommended. The first is an
Assistant Town Administrator/HR Director. I know the criticism will be that I was just hired and
already looking for an assistant. Well, that is somewhat true. | knew on my first day that Human
Resources was severely lacking in Stow and there would need to be a dedicated effort to bring us
up to standards in policies, compliance, and training. While I've made some progress over the last
seven months, there is so much more than needs to be done and really needs someone dedicating
the majority of their time on it. Another criticism | have heard is “why are you calling it an
Assistant Town Administrator? Why not just an HR Director?” That is also a very valid point.
Calling the position an Asst. TA gives me some flexibility if there are projects or meetings I
would need this person to assist with. The salary range in the budget is that of an HR Director,
and not a true Asst. TA. Additionally, using the Asst. TA title should open up the potential
candidates to a wider pool.

The added expense for this proposed position is $75,667, however, I believe the net impact will
be much less. Over the last several years there have been a number of personnel issues that were
not dealt with in an expeditious fashion and cost the town a significant amount of money in terms
of unearned salary, medical costs, training, and unemployment. Also, having someone provide
regular training will help avoid injuries, lawsuits, and employee turnover.



The second position I am proposing is a laborer for the Highway Department. This position will
share their time between the highway and cemetery. This will be the first step in the process of
fully consolidating the Cemetery & Highway Department to create a Department of Public
Works. With the goal of having that ready to go for Fiscal Year 2023. The cost of this position [
$44,557.92 and again, the net impact will be less than that, as we will be able to do more in-
house, including road work, snow plowing, and cemetery maintenance.

The final new position being proposed is a librarian for the Library. We are currently have only 1
full-time employee (Director) and 5 part-time employees. This part-time librarian will focus on
Circulation and Technical Services and will allow a reorganization of other staff to cover
Reference and Outreach. 1 believe this position is imperative for us to stay on par with other
libraries in our area and of the same demographics. The cost of this position is $20,068.16.

In the Fire Department, I am supporting an increase to call wages for Lieutenants. This increase
will be utilized to compensate the On-Call Lieutenants for one hour during their overnight shift.
This will increase accountability and require the On-Call Lieutenant to report to the station at the
beginning of the overnight shift to perform the standard administrative duties that have been
lacking during this shift. Our Fire Department is remarkably efficient and this minimal increase of
$15,086 will allow us to continue offering 24/7 response with more accountability and oversight.

I am also proposing an increase to the Snow & Ice Budget. The Town has budgeted $165,000 tor
the last five fiscal years. Over that same period of time, the average expense for this budget has
been $216,635. Snow & Ice is an account that can be deficit spent and funds can be made up with
available funds or through the Tax Levy. My position is, just because we CAN deficit spend,
does not mean we should not be fiscally responsible and budget better so we are not trying to find
$40k-$50 additional a year. Salaries and expenses increase every year, so it is only prudent to
revisit this budget every 3-5 years to bring it more in line with spending. 1 am recommending we
increase this budget to $200,000 at this time. Cost of this recommendation is $3 5,000.

The Board of Health has been reconfigured to budget for the expenditures properly. The monies
for the public health nurse had been funded through an article, but really should be a budgeted
expense, so they have been moved there. Additionally, expenses have been historically included
under the salary line items, so there are adjustments made to rectify that situation. The net
increase to this department is only a 1.7% increase.

Other notable changes in the operating budget are the following;

* Board of Appeals — 4 additional hours per week for the Board Secretary for a cost of
$5,661.

® Municipal Building — Additional cost for dehumidifier at Pompo and rising cost of electric
bills — increase of $12,000

¢ Highway/Cemetery — additional funds for part-time/seasonal grounds work — cost of
$7.950

e Recreation — With the revolving fund almost entirely depleted during COVID, funds have
been added to cover some staft wages until the revolving account can be replenished and
again cover these expenses. Cost of $11,065



As stated in my opening paragraph, these deficiencies need to be addressed. If not for Fiscal 2022,
they will come up again in 2023. I am recommending favorable action on these requests, while
we have the funding in a year with a decreased NRSD school assessment. Please know, I
scrutinize every budget request to determine if it is something we need, if it is something we can
afford, and if it is sustainable. I firmly believe the increases, proposed in this budget are warranted
and will enhance the service we provide to the residents and employees.

Even with these recommended changes, this budget is only up 2.14% over FY21. I welcome an
opportunity to discuss my proposed budget and look forward to a productive Fiscal 2022.



a0°001 00 LLRELOTE  “00°001 ROLTYELYTY 00001 00°ELE7LTLT o07001 FA'E 43 ira X iRy 000 CLIDLIIC) SOV RS T8

007001 - 00°0 2007001~ 000 "o00'Y 0C 98¢ 9T ¢ Y volty TOETYLIIEY 9RO81SLOTY SURLLTANLIND IV LOL
2500001~ 00’0 2600°001- 000 %099°% 00°LPETHP'T 007001651 TE80F06Y71 SINALIIVOHI XV L
9400001 00°0 u,00°001- 000 La89°YY 00°61F° L8 006197856 00°CE8° 009 SHIOLLAY IV.LIdY D
46007001~ 00°0 “a00°001- 000 EYES o 08 €0 069 06'996°99t FSOCH SO ALISNVAL % LLVIREJON DY - STIOLLAV TVIDHIS
ol 001~ 00°0 Ca0°001- 000 0l0'1T Q0 0087TEL OO'SLGPYL O CLY 009 SLINTIAOUAAY 3 SV -SHTOLLAY (IVIDHAS
25007001~ 0070 600001 - 000 26T0°0" 00010602 0008 1°060°C 00°09¢°060°T HOIAMHS 188
Y00 001~ 000 9400001~ 0070 Yl6'TT 00 T08708¢<°1 00'F08708¢°1 00 Y807 98771 INFINSSHSSV TLOEL OOA NVINGLLININ
007001 - 00°0 9007001~ 0070 Polb 0 00068765081 0006865081 00T SELRI LINGIINSSHSSY LSIA HOS DT VHOHSYN
o007 001 00°0 2a00°001- 000 2o0t ¢ 00 161ERLL OIrLIsLL 00 0F098¢L TIVLOL LADCUET IV dIDINGUN IV EINGD
SHRELLIANA AN
L0661 OULLEESOTY w66l 86°LTYECYTE % TPT 0€°656°066°CY 25061 PEORLSr1OY 98'681°CL0TY HINOINI 'IVLOL
Ce00°0 95000 “u00°0 U000 MOUAOL
o000 *a00°0 “o00°0 @500 SHTOLLAV WAAOL MYV D
200070 T () Co0°00] 00000007 200001 O 000°00¢ NOLLVZITIEHV LS 800 HSY O 1R
o007 2000 260070 200070 SHTDLLAV TTVLIAY O AO1 SCNTLT SOV IMAS AV RIETAO
260070 U500°0 Cu00°0 240070 SO AO:T SANT SV TINS AVTREAIAO
26007001~ L0001 - 2601001 D06GLEERS YOt LI 00°619°8€06 00°CE8°0FF SHTOLLAV IV LIV MOd - HSY D HHMA
2000001~ 25007001~ 500°0 00000758 00070 00°000°Cy T 00000767 HELAO A0 HSV.D A
26001 a0 0 20070 260070 VL ALAHIOMA
SAVLLOO TV LIAV) A0 WS INOINT
25000 0N 2o00°0 000 Cu000 000 Y0070 00°0 00’0 SHIOLLEY MAAOQLMEVD
240070 000 440070 000 o000 000 4500°0 000 000 SCUNTL SIY LRSS AV RIFTAO
Po°0 [LIUNY o070 0070 Lo00°0 000 ea00°0 000 00’0 NI NOLLVZITTI-IV LS
200070 00°0 Oo00°0 000 250070 00°0 “u00°0 000 000 HSVO R
2600°001- 000 2500001 {Zo0) (US| v Ya9C 01~ Pe9T6'TET PEOTE 09T SCOUNDLA MHHLLO INOM MILISNV AL
“000°001- 000 4007001~ 000 00 O00°CL9°L SabL 0 00°000°CE9°1 00°000°€+9°1 SLALOR TV OO ]
20070 000 “o0070 00°0 Y0070 000 2070 000 000 AONVISISSV ONICTL S “TOOHDS - AV ALLVILS
200L T 00°9¢S ot Y06L T 00'9cEcor o0l T 00'9€C°CoT YaOL T 00'9sS6T DOESLO0E IV GLIVLS
28111 O0'ITE8EITE 8111 O0CLOSELTE  “t9'1 00°6LY6RTTY 986711 00'6LYG8YTY TEELIPT6'ST NV KLAHdON
SNOLLVIJAO HOA TS AINOINT

HA MO LAaDang AXN ORI ANMININOOMM  AA HORId  ONAININODAA A MO LSO LinHdang

A_AAO (IILOA HAAO ALLIININOD HAAO  AMOINALSININAY - AAAO LAand ALOA

JDNVHD 0T AA AONVID HONVNIA AONVHD NAOL AONVHD TT0T A 10T A

Yo % LADAng Yo Lanang Yo NIV 1202
TT0T AA TT0T A
21l jo | :abeyq TTYNID - LHOd3Y 1S3ND3Y L39aNg ZZA4

L20Z/8/v 91eq
ONILIIW NMOL TYNNNY 1202

MOLS 40 NMOL



IV HLVLS LiIN

140 LHAHS OMHHD ©LoAdHEa

aIv 31V,

OAD

SHRIVHLIT OI'ENd

SLEEINGIEE SNV LA

AV NOLIVZITEV LS TVJAIDINAIN

18 HO AN AV AIO QY LIV LS

IV TV OOT TVNOLLIAAy

CUV L INFINNRGEAOD INWAND (ELLORLLS RN

OL ¥ALIVHO

FASOdS ONIAIAMNS AN IEHUSLHA - SHNV.L SSOT
CNVTAHNMNO HLVLS - SINVIL §SOT

VIREICr]

IV ILLVES

CobL T~ 00°98¢ Cor %0 C- 00'9¢¢°Cot %%6L'T- 00°9¢¢ o %6 T 00'9¢c cor 00°CEL 608
200°0T (o801 1) 2600°0T (0o'sro11) 2.00'0T OsFa11) 260008 (o'stoil) (00°L0T6)
08¢°T- 00°F09°90¢ %o8E'T- 00+09°90¢ 68¢€°Z- 00'+09°90¢ 9%8E°T- 00 +09°90¢ 00'796°81¢
%0007 00'8+0°1 1 %600°07 00°8t0°T1 %00'07 00'8E0°1 1 %00°02 00°8F0°T1 00°L0Z°6

oy RE- 0'68C°61 o008 86 00°68€°61 oy 8E- 00'GRE61 Culy 88~ 0068561 GOTLOOF
%600°0 260070 25000 20000 000

Y000 940070 940070 “a00°0 000

%000 6000 %000 2500°0 000

2008y 00°0LYT9t 2u08°Y 00°0L9'29t 08y 00°0L9T9F MO°0LYTYE 00 tTOLPT
Lrisery 00°98LT 2488°T 00°98L'C %6587 00'9¢L'C 00ovLz 00°899°C

Vet 61" 00°19¢°01 Yoyt 6l 007 19€70L Yt e 6l 00 19€°01 00°19¢°01 00°160°Y 1
“00°0 “00°0 000 26000 000

Y1711 00T1TY8EITY R8I O0TLOBSITY 9%t [ 1 00°6L9°687°TS %86'11 00'6LYGRETE CEELIFTGRT
000 00°0 Ya00°0 000 00070 000 2000 000 00°0

28111 O0IZERELTE 281711 GOZLORELZE  o6b9 I 00'6LYGRE T “a86° 11 00'6LY 68Ty TLELLPEZO T

200001 -

%09

OO ITEREIEY

200001

%6097

00TLOSSLTY

2600001~

0E

DOGLY 68T TY

Ca0 001~

OobyE

D0°6LOGRETY

(89trealr D)

O0'RILEFETE

SNOLLYHHAJO A0 AASN XV L ALMAION

AVILLAO TV LIV 0 (ST XV L ALTdOND

CASTVH AANT NV E

ALLOVAVD AN T CEISINA SLONCEC

HHHVAOTIV WANINVIN

Mall'€T
2o0L 0

YolET

00 F8OTES
00°LES O]

00°09£°699°6T

Yol L'€T
oL 0"

2008°C

0O TROTES
QOLLRFTO |

D0°L11°699°6C

Yl l'€T
Yot~

Yolly

DO T80T
00 t8F7970°1

DO LLI6L8 6L

LL'tT
%P9l

298¢

00 TR0
(PR 9761

0011161667

00°886°68t
00798 8EO°|

DOPLY SFO'ST

NVINELLOANIN/AS¥MN < NOIS O TON LG
SNOISIYTONL LI aay

LINTT ANA'L T TJ0Ud

a0
9007001~
oL’
260070
%Cl’E

00°et9°vTL
00°¢re
Q0 PLESPE'8T

200070
a(0°001-
“oll’E
200001~
ell’s

QU LY9ETL

Q0 TLY Er6'8T

Lo00°0
P08 €E-
Gcmh. W--
2o00° 001~
%oll'Y

Q0000708 L
00°LE9ETL

0O PLECFO"8C

200070
RCR A T
Yoll'Y
o 001~
(1)

i
uCl b

00°000°0€T
00 LY L

DO FLE CPO'ST

000
00°FEL6EE
O TTLL6Y
ere
O0981°806°LT

AARRIAAO

HLEANOMD WHN

ASVITHONI %66°T

FLEAORUYD AN CEICUNINY
JINCTANT T T T dOMd

LANHASRE XV L A LAAJONU]

AN MO
HAHAO
ADNVHO

LAaDdang
(CLLOA
T A

Zl Jo g :abeyd

AA AORA
HHAO
HONVHD
Yo

UNTININODATY
HALIININOD
INVNI
Landng
T A

HAAOTUJ
AHAO
ADNVHD
Yo

UNHIWNINODMA
AOTIVALSINTINGY

NAOL

LAodng

0T A

IVNIG - LHOd3Y 1S3N0AY 13908 Z2Ad

AL Ao
ANAO
AONVHD
O\ﬂv

WALSIANOAY
Laang
0T Adl
NIV 1702

ONILIIW NMOL TYNNNY 1202
MOLS 40 NMOL

LADANE
WLLOA
1T0T A

Leoz/e/r ‘e1eq



25000 00°0 240070 000 %0070 00°0 40070 00°0 0070 OLLVELIO AOM (IS TISV) 3001 TV.LOLL
25000 000 250070 00°0 20000 00°0 200070 00°0 0070 JNNODOV FDTANY MONS MO - HSV D (ERLT
240070 000 260070 00°0 26000 000 20000 000 000 HIVE NV ADNATH OL - HSVD ST
240070 000 Y0070 000 La00°0 000 Q0070 000 0070 SLIDEEICT ETRA AOA ISV O SR
250070 0070 %0000 000 %0070 000 260070 000 0070 SHOLAMAS INANAOVNVIN ONISTI0H
SNOLLYAAAO A0 IS TISV.) ST
000015 000 200001 0070 %0L6 1 0$7C08°¢ET 20901 - +COT6T8T P OTE 097 SAN AHLO INOWA WAASN VAL TV .LOL
2,00°001- 2400001 oolt'8- 00°000°ST 2600'0 tLS6T LT SLOT XMALANDD 40 TTVS
00001~ Yu00°001- Sa00001- Cu00°001 - VO00070Y SUND IV LAY D CCIONGEININ NIRIAOAAAV 1M
00001 0 00°001- %408°¢S 00°§19°% 2600°0 XY are 00°§5¢7 HONVNIINIVIN ANVT NOLLV AMHASNOD
00°001 - 2u00°001- 0687CS 08L79°¢ 25000 0SPeET 08 TeeT CINN NOLLOLLOM SCNYLLIA
00001+ 2500001 00L99 00°000°0F 2099 00° 00070t 00°00§°LE TALLININOD NOLLY AMAS T LLINAININGD
9400°001 - 900001 vaSL 't 00'590°E8 1 6000 08 1P6 091 08 1PG091 CNDLLCELIN BRI ISV, CNY SSHOOV DA
SUNTLL HAHLO WO MAASNVRLL
%0000L- 0070 900°001- 000 06L (- 00°000°7£9°1 u6L 0 00°000°ZE9" [ 00°000°SF9'T SLAIAYAA TV.IOT IV IOL
5000 50070 260070 2u00°0 0070 ONRILOTRIENON $OOANY T EOSHY
200070 2ol () 250070 200070 000 SHUXVENOVITION
0000°0 9400°0 24000 40070 0070 SHNVL IV INAIN Tl 1S
P 00001~ Y00°001- Yot {08 000000y Yol 0L~ 00°000°0% 00000+ SONINUVH NO LSTRIALNI
007001 o00°001- “o00°0 00°008°¢ 20 QO008°E 00 O08°¢ SHNIA
200 001 - Loty 001 Su00°10) 000007001 Ca0070) 0 000001 000007001 SLOAMd CINY SHSNTOUT
“o00" 001~ Cal 001~ 9000 00°000°s Y0000 Q0 000°¢ 00°000°¢ A_AHLO = SANIATRL L
©a00°001- 2000001~ 46000 00006 %000 00°000°6 00°000°6 RUMALAIND = HONAA T L
S0 001~ Pl 0L “o00°0 Q000t7¢ 2070 000+ 0000F°C AN - ONGACR LI
P00 001~ Colron]- 0070 Q0°001 o000 GO 001 00001 SV
Y00 001~ Y0001~ Y00 O0°000°<9 Ca00°() 00°000°CY 00000y
00001 2u00°001- 94000 007 000°00T 2000'0 00°000°00¢ 00°000°00¢ SHELE DNV LNV = SHOLAES WO SHONVHD
0000 1+ 2%00°001 - %0070 00°000°571 20000 00°0007T | 00000 ST SHNVLAO T NLINHINAVA
GO0 001 - 26007001 - 000 00'000°0F o) 00 000°0F 000000 ASIONT B NV NO LN ® UL TVAGL
20070 “a00°0 Ca00°0 000 000 00°0 000 ASION AHHLO
900001 26007001 9000 00000705071 240070 00°000°050°1 00700070501 AMRLSION I MOLOW
SLATALIA TVOO'T
26000 00°0 20070 000 u00°0 00°0 26000 000 000 AONVISISSV ONIATL I “TOOHS A1V ALYV IS
HAHORI 135008 ALAOIAd  ANAWWOIAM  MA MOIId  ANAINNOOAA | MA NORId  (alSd 100 LADANY
AANO ATOA HHAO  WALIININOD  WAAQ  HOLVAISINONAY  MHAO Lanang aALOA
AONVHD 0T A AONVHD AINVNLI AONVILD NAOL AONVHD 0T Ad 1207 A4
%o Yo LADANH Y LAOaN % NIV 120T
7707 A4 TT0T A

Z1 Jo ¢ obeyq TYNIH - LH0d3d 1S3N03Y L39aNg Z2A4
ONILIIN NMOL TYNNNY LZ0Z

MOLS 40 NMOL

Leoersiv -e1eq



——

B S

———

2%00°001- 000 wOO001- 000 "W8tT 00°5$72°0L %8tz 00°$TT 0L 0057689
25007001 SO0 001 - “u000 00°T1°T “L00°0 00°sZIT GsTlT
Cu0001- Y0001~ 208 TL 00'osy o081 VIS o o000+
Yo 00 - Y00 001 - Yo08'T 00°089°LY "0(0€°C 00 0S9°LY 00000799
200001 000 wO0001- 000 %ot 10 00°£5T°98 2010 00'LST 98 O0TE1 98
L0000 1- Gl 001 2000 000091 25000 0070091 000091
26007001~ 2007001 Tal0°0 007000708 20000 00000708 GO'000°08
6007001 L0000 - Yabt T 00°LEvt a0t 'T 00 LEY T 00 trret
200001 000 Sa00°001- 000 R T QO'Fe9cey Sort Og K FLoeey 00789 €HT
200001 26007001~ S il Q0011 et CT0L 00081 L 00°008°s
500001 2000°001- 9,6L°018 00°000°58 °0SL 018 00°000°$8 00°EE5°6
Y0001~ o000 001~ Yoh6 0 IR of | YabG (- [IVRVINGRS o | 0011 LPT
“a00°001- 5007001~ D60 QU086 1L Y06 0" 00086711 00°001°¢Cl
00001 - 00001 - I8 01 G0FSH 18 %,T8 01 DOFSEIS 00888716
Lol 00 - 000 Qu00 001 - 00°0 2o0070 Q016 a0 oo'16 00 k6
L0001+ 2o00°001- Qo0 () 00°9r 20070 009t 009t
Ye00001- Yu00°001- 26000 VNS § Ya00°0 0o'st Ot
GO0001- 0070 S00001- 0070 20l T 901 0061975651 912901 00 GIE6E ] 00°5E8°6LY
W00 D0 - 00001 2Ot L1 00619856 SOt LI 007619886 D058 0FF
o000 20070 Co00° () o000 000
200070 250070 2600001 00"000°00C Pu00°001 00°000°00T 000
Y0001 Ye00'001- 60070 00000 €T Ca00°0 D0'000°€sT Q0 000°CsT
L AOR  IHDAE AL AORID  ANAIWNINODAA  HA MORId  ONAININOOHN AN MOLAd | (oLLSA 1002 Landng
AAAO (LLOA HIAO  WILIININOD  MAAO  AOIVMISININGY  ¥HAO LA WHLOA
AONVILD TT0T Ad ADNVHD AINVNL AONVILD NMOL HONVILD TT0T Ad 1202 Ad
Yo % LADUNE %o LA % NIV 1202
10T A 70T Ad
ZL Jo v oBey TYNIL - LYOd3 LSIND3IY 139aNE ZZAS

ONILLIIW NMOL TVNNNY £202
MOLS 40 NMOL

IVILOL L

CINDIOJDV NAOL

SHENIAN?T SLENV.INTOOOY
SHOVM HOLLIO SLNVINIODOV
ARAVTIVS SUONVINDODOY

10DV NAAOL

IV LOLGLLLININOD JONVNLI

SUSNHAXH JLININOOD TTONVYNL
AN IAMHSHT

SHOVACELLLENINOD HONVNLL

MCLLEIININGD FONVNTA

IVIOL FOLINVALSININAY NAOL

SUSNAAN T MOLVALSININAY NAWOL

SHOVN AOLITAIA MHAOLVALSININGY NAOL LNV LSISSV
LUVIVE MOLYALSININCY NAOL

SNHANH TOLLO SINGINLOA TS
TOVAHDLLIO SNEONLOH TS
HOINALSINTINAY N WO

SHSNAN HOLNVAHHUAON

SHASNIANI SAOLVHACAON
AAVIIVS SAOINVAICACIN

HOINAMWAAOIN

NN HHAOD IVANNID

SR LLIANIIANA LIFOAN TVAUNTD

SNOLLY HHAO 000 TS HSVD) SERE IV IO

VLIV O MAHILLO

NOLLYZTTIEV.
CLLLSTRLE €O

L20Z/8/b #leQ



Y%00°001- 00°0

%600°001-

00°0 Yall't

————————

DO6LERLT

:3_. —

o

SLBLEPLL

00°CTL 691

2000°001-
Yo00°001-
200 001-

007001~
20007001~
207001

SatL’l
Y088'E

2008°T

00°0€R°¢

O0'811°Z8
00 LIE 98

Yol
20E8’
“ollg”

(4]

o~

00"0ER'S
CLLTICS
[LLEN R g1

00°0SL°S
Q0°CLOGL
00 L0 T8

Y0001~ 0070

Sa00° 001~

000

e

00TERLLL

a8

o,

LOI88°L11

D0°0LY Y11

Ya00°001-
007007
Po00°001-

2a0'001-
200°001-
2007001~

C&#—PQ.N
PbT'8
200€°T

000061
D0°SE870Y
0L

ol
Yotl’
RS

z-

o

007006t
19°F$8°0¢
(LTl 9L

00°0s0°¢
00°0S0F¢E
OLTFL

2000001~ 00°0

2o00°001-

000 2911~

006667991

2068

SOLLLISIL

00 196'891

o000 001~
Y007 001-
a00°001 -

2000001~
Cali0°001-
200001~

Coll’§-
YO0t
Yol

~l

00°S19°81
00°99€799
0081818

“oll’
b
a8

00°C19°81
SOPPYLS
00°R1RTIR

DossL 6l
D0°TRE69
00°TR 6L

2007001~ 00°0

2000001 -

00°0 %lTl

OO0'BITSIC

ubt

O656'61T

00'6eeTIT

2001~
Co00°001-

00001
Yo00°001-

“ol6’0
28T

00 OreZLY
08LeTr

2ol

Call’

00'0PsLLL
0061 TE

000007 1LL
00°6E¢ 1

“o00°00] - 00°0

S0 001~

000 26897

00'68L" 91T

00°68£791C

OORFE01C

20007001 -
20007001~
2007001~

o001 -
“al0001-
“ol0001-

"ot 6

2609870~

o0€T

00 L1 6t
0010688
DOFILBL

Yot
a8’
RISy

[
O

QOrLL6F
OO LOS'88
O0t1IL 8L

[HER YIS
00000768
00T6eL oL

“a00°001- 000

2007001~

000 2t 9’

o

00°0L0°691

%ot

09°690°691

00°EEE9]1

007001 -
20" 001 -
00°001-

2a00°001-
2a00°001-
%a0°001-

9L €T
2069°¢

2p8LE

000078
0016008
00°6LL08

08"
G n\uc.

:.:M V

000078
09°060°08
Q06LLO8

00°00L701
OO I8LSL
00°TEV 9L

AN ORI
A_AAANO
HONVHD)
Yo

Zl Jo g :abey

Laonang

10
20T A4

AL ORI
A[AAO
JONVILD
h'\..-

NAININODHE ¥ MODMd
MALLLININOD HUAAO
AONVHD
Lanand Yo

AINVNIA

T A

ANTININOOHA
HOINALSININAY
NAOL
LADdng
0T A

TYNIH - LHOd3Y LSINDIY LIADANE ZZAL
ONILIIW NMOL TYNNNY 1202

AN MO
HIAAO
AONVIHD

O\mu

[UICHI

MOLS 40 NMOL

110
BRCESTART|
0T A
NIV 1202

DANa
(LLOA
1T0T A

IVIOQL RAVOHS DONINNY I

SHSNHAN CRIVOLT ONINNY I
SHOVAN TVORIATO AAVOS DNINNY 1d
AHNNYId NAOL

(RAVOH ONINNV I

TIVLOL NOISSININOD NOLLVAAASNOD

SHSNGLINH NOISSININGOD MASNOD
SHOVA TVORATD NSSININOD ¥ASNOD
HOLOHAIC NOLLY AMASNOD
NOISSTWINOD NOLLYAYMIASNOD

IVIOL MYITINAOL
SHSNHINT MAHLTO NAOL

STOVA MAHLO SN LD NAOL
AAVIVS SRAMTO NWOT

MAUA LI NAOL

VIO

SHOVALLL

ADOTONHIGLL NOLLY INHOAN |

TVLOL AO LT IO ARSI

SHENAINH MOLOTIOOMANNSVIRLL
SHOVATIVORET LD MOLOT TIONSVHAL
AMUVIIVE MOLOT T IO0O0-MHASVIRLL

AOLYTIONMRNSVIRIL

IVLOL SHOSS?

SHSNAIN SAOSSHSSY
SOV TVORELD SHOSSHSSY
SAOVA MOSSHASSY ' IVAIONTA

SHOSSHSSY

L20e/8/v vleQ



2ol0°00T-

0o

o001~

000

%eCYt

00'698°6E8

%TYE

16'898°6L8

00°£9¢7018

2o 001-
o00°001~
20007001~

2000001~
V400°001-
2007001

2000

00008 6L
Q0'9TL 99
007 EF9' Y11

20000
oBTF
%08°C

0000 6L
LO'STL9FY
PO TFO LT

00005 6L
00761707
00148011

2600001~

00°0

Y0001~

000

2o0T'€

00°61£969°1

%698°¢

00°026699°1

00T TLol

2007001~
Ya00'001-
%00°001-

2a00°00T-
Y0000~
To00°001-

°0l6FT
Yatl'F
"ol

00°0S8°91 1
OO SS6°LETL
00FISTIET

%oTL'S
baE0'e

%alT1

00°0£8°86
0096576511
00 FIC1E0

000086
00°S80°68" 1
00°LI% 6l

a00°001-

0070

2007001

00°0

2ul(09

Q0'ELLTCSST)

2obeL

6996

Q0TTO8LLLL

2000001~

00°0

20007001

00°0

09k -

00 006°L

9t t-

00008"L

Q0°0SRL

a0
200 001 -

Co0070
2ot 01 -

20070
Rt o o

400087,

200070
R0 o

OO 008°L

00088

00001

000

00001~

00°0

® -udln..- M

00°6LETOY

g are

006LrTos

O ELLE6T

2007001~
20007001

500001~
200001 -

“006'L
nabe g

OFO0LTOL
006LL 681

"96'L
L]

00°00L7T91
ellorl

00°00L7081
PELO LT

Ze0°001~

000

26007001~

000

ol0'FE

00°018°£C

Yat('SL

OC'LBOLE

0009L°LL

26007001~
Y007 001+

2007001~
2007001~

20070
YolR8Y

00°00T°T
O00LYILL

*o00°0
pUTNAS

00007
0T'L88'8T

00 007°T
00°09¢°¢1

HA HMORd
HIAO
TONVILD
Yo

LaHand
ILLOA
0T A

2l Jo g ebed

AN HOTA
HHAO
AONVHO
%o

UNININODATY

AN HOLA

MALLIININOD AUAO
AINVNIA ADNYVIHD
LD Yo
T A

UNHININOOTH

AOINVALSININAY

NAOL
LADANE
TT0T Ad

TTYNIS - LH0d3d 1S3ND3IY 13908 ZZA4

AL O
HAAO
AONVHD
5\.—-

AALSANON
JLHDand
T A
NIV 1T0T

ONILIFN NMOL TVNNNY LZ0Z
MOLS 40 NMOL

IO
(LLOA
1207 A1

TVILOL SINH ANV AL

A SINHL AN
AAVTIVS

SINIT ANV JA14

IVIOL LdAd d01'T0d
SASNHANH HOLVISIA ¥ HO110d
SUDVA HOLYASIA 3 01 1Od
AAVIVE AHHO OO

LA 101 TOd

ALIAVS Or1dnd

INFINEHAOD TIVHANID 'IVIOL

v,

OTINNRTGLAOD "IV ANGED HATELO

LLLININOD NV ADOU IV LIV D)
SHSNHAN SIMOAT NAO]

INCNNAOD IVAANAD AAFLLO

TVLOL ONI TN "TVAIININ

ASNAANTT ALAJOMT ® ONAIAE NN
SHOVA LAV % HNICEINE INOIN

ONIATTIONA "IVJLIIN X

IVLOL STIVHAIY 10 AAvOost

SASNHANH STIVHAAY 10 UV o
SHOVAIVOREI LD STIVHAY 10 (v Od

SAVIHAIY A0 QAVOL

120Z/8/¥ ‘®leq



2007001~ 000

200001

00°0 %9CC'8

00'9¢S7FHI

%t 1701

GO6r6Irl

Q06T ELl

200°001-
o0 001~
2a00°00T~

200°001-
Co(0°00T-
200001~

“oC1'868
208 YL
QQ:T»N‘

00°9L8°¢9
007106721
00°65L709

°aZ8'9-
o681
2008°C

0070519
A0 Orr o8
00°65L709

000099
O0°TES™LY
00°LLT 68

La00°001~ 000

La00°001-

000 Yalr0l

DO 8T LETL

GYI86°6xT L

00°069°Cr 17l

2007001~ 00°0

Y0001~

000 eSSl

O0°CE8LY

CaCLT

00°6IL°L6

00'089°9L

a0 001~
"a00°001-
2a00r001-

Ya00°001-
200°001-
Sa007 001~

Yo0$'L
“o00°06L1
2008°T

00°0sF°9
00°0St°6
00°SE071L

"a0SL
208'9LLE

o€

00°0St 9
00'FRE61
(HYEYo’IL

00°000°9
00008
00°081°0L

200001~

“al0'001-

“o00'E-

0G°000°9L

o00°0

00°000°08

00000708

ol 001-

2ol0' 001~

¢ -_n.lc,‘\-l

00°000°L

*al9'9-

00°000°L

O000L"L

2o00°001 - 00°0

o0’ 001~

000 "0l 1]

00°C127980°1

6y TITIs0'!

OO0'01$8LO

o000 1=
“o00°001~
007001~
“e00°001-

2o00° 001~
2u00°001-
To00°001-
2007001~

%ITIT
Y078
Y01
"0€°T

0070007008
OO ELLFE
006817179
006011

a0
Y008
Tt 0l1
08¢

000007591
Q0 CLLTST
00°681°179
GE8FCOL

Q0000791
[LERVISVES |
00°106To¢
00°6SEL0T

2a00°001- 000

Po00°001-

000 209

00°1957189°T

Y9t

L6 191765977

00°€86°C96T

Co00°001- 00°0

2001~

00°0 2008°¢

00 YLESH

208t

00°YLE ST

00°896°6E1

Lo00° 001
2ol 001~
2000001~

S0 001-
2o00°001-
Yol0001-

Pl T
06O’
ol T

00°€69°9
00°L9¢7LE
00°TTL7LS

206 P
Yal6Y

"l

00°§69°0
DOFLOSTLE
DOTILLS

00°S66°9
O0°OFRYS
ooesloL

AA YOI
HAAO
AONVHO
Yo

ZL o / ;ebey

LabHdang
MLLOA
TTOT N

AA ORI
HUHAAO
HONVHD
Yo

UNMIWINODH dA HOTd

HALLLININOD AMAO
LINVNIA AONVHD
LADANY Yo
0T Al

ANHININOOIY
AOLVALSININGY
NAOL
LAndng
T A

VNS - LHOd3Y 1S3ND3Y 1390N9 ZZAd
ONILIIW NMOL TYNNNY 1202

AN HOLUJ

AAAO

AONVIHD

C\.r_

AALSANOMA
LaHangd
TT0T Ad
NIV 1Z0T

MOLS 40 NMOL

LiaoHdandg
H1.0A
1207 A4

IVILOL LdAA HIIVIH
SHSNHINH LNINLYV dHT HLTVHH
SHOVAN LNAINTAV dCU L IV
HOLVILSININGY HOLLIO HLTVHH
LJHU HLTVAH

SAIMAYMAS NVINOH

SALLIIIOVA ¥ MAOA OIS TV LOL

IVILOL Ll AMMLINALD

SHUSNELINGD SMALLIINGLD
SHOVAANY DUVIVS OMHLLAINAD
ANGICNALINDEANS LN
LI AL INGL)

SNELINH IO TASHIA ® ANTTOSVD

FLHODIT IVAIDINAIN

TV LOL SGNIOUD W SAVANHDIN

HSNIANELIVAOINGRI FON ANV AMONS
SHSNEANH SCUNNOUL B SAVAAHOIH
SHOVA SUNIOUD ¥ SAVAHOIN

AAVIVES SLERLS O LdNS

SUNNO/MD ANV SAVAIIDIH

TLLTTEDV AL UNY SMUOM DI

Al

AVS DI "TVIOL

IVIOL HOLOHASNT ONTA IO

SHSNHINH AOLIAISNT ONIA TN

SHOVA TIVORE LD LNHINLAY EHC DN TN

SHDVA HOLOHASNI DNIA TN

HOLIAJISNT ONTA TR

L20Z/8/y 21eQ



——

[ ———————
200001~ 00°0 007001 - 000 00LE9 00°6LL66Y 2%Tr'6 0T St8 60t 00°€98 LY
2600°001- 2000001~ 20000 007001 2000 00001 0000t
2007001~ 2500°001- %000 00006 95000 00°006 007006
007001~ %00°001- “00°0 00°00Z°1 250070 00°00Z°1 00°002°1
S00°001- 000 200001~ 0070 R AT ol 00°EEET %tTTT 00°E€ET 00°000°¢
Ta00°001- 00°001- Y araa 00°€e€T %t Cl- 00°€eeT 00°000°¢
20007001~ 000 00001~ 0o 6L L1 0070017801 208867 0T 9917611 007 ELL L6
2600001~ 2000001~ 2o00°0 00'00€'+ a0 00 00<+T 00008+
9007001~ 900001~ Yol 1TE81 00°€997 1| "ot S 889y 0T 15L°TT 00°009
%00°001- L00°001- 68" 00°CE6™1L 9%68°L 00°SE6TL 00°€L9°99
25007001 00'0 5007001~ 00°0 99t 00°9+¢ 98T 9680°¢ 00°9F 1982 00°068°LLT
0007001~ 2007001 - 0080°S- 00°168°9¢ 2080°¢- 00188792 00796708
000001 - 200001~ %6 00°F9£798 | CalL'8 00°+967¢E [ OO F8OCTI
00001~ 200001~ “a($ T 00 1L YL 26067 00 1ve"y 00°TrC 1L
2007001~ o0 Y0001~ 000 ) 000597 10F Yottt (IR U 00°6P8 98
Se00° 001~ noo 2000°001- 000 Ye0T'T 00°109°C 00T 001097 00°SheT
600°001- Sa00°001~ 250070 00'00¢ Ya0°0 00°00¢ 00°00%
Co00°001- 007001~ RTE 001087 LG e 00°108°T 00°¢HTT
0001~ 000 2500°001- 000 bt l Q0°E6E 5T OF Lor 4T 00°¢L80ST
2600001 2007001~ 0098 - 00°REETL 498 (LR 00°8t67TI
2000001 207001 Costl 00°€11°¢91 gt | 0P C1L€91 007982791
Yo00°001- 9007001~ 9067 0000 LL 0$°T 00°070°LL 00°1+1°6L

HA AORId LaHang ANAORII  ANAIWINOIAY A HOINJ UNAININOOHME A AOLMd AALSANOMNA LADang

HAAO (PLLOA AAAQ MALLLIININO.) AAAO  HOIVALISININGY  WIAO Lahang UHLOA
ADNVHD 70T A ADNVHO AINVNIA AONVHD NAOL AONYVHD TT0T A 0T Ad
%o % LaHang Yo LD %o NIV 1T0T
TT0T A 0T A
2l Jo g abey VNS - LHOd3Y 1S3IND3AY 139aNg 22A4

ONILIIW NMOL TVANNY 1202
MOLS 40 NMOL

NOLLVIRIDHE ANV HAL T IV IOL
SASNHANT DO 4O ONITHOIT
SHSNHANH AVA TVIMONDN
SASNHINT NOISSTNINGD TV ORMOISIH
TV.LOL NOISSIININO.D NOOS| HMV']
SHSNHINT NOISSININOD NOOH T3V
NOISSININOD NOOH AMY'|

IV IOL NOLLVAI¥MA

SHSNAINH NOLLVTNOTY

SHOVA NOLLVHOHY

HOLOHHIA NOLLY 1O
NOISSIININOD NOLLVA¥ )]
IVILOL AVl

SHSNHANY DAVALN]

SHOVA DAVANT

LAVIIVS SUOLOTAICT AV AT

LA KAV

NOLIVIRLDARM ANV LT
SHUDIARAS NVIN O IV LOL

IVIOL LAMU SNVILIAA

SUSNHANH INADY SNV AL
SAVTIVE LNHOV SNVILLAA

Ll SN UL
TVLOL ONIOY NO 'TIDNNOD
SHSNHANH ONIDY NO IHONNOD

SHODVA DNIOV NO TIONNOLD
AAVIVS SAOLOIIC TALLNDAN

ONIDV NO TN 10D

L20Z/8/v eleqQ



Yol 1T 00 SL0°91€7°6T

TOCI6115°62

00°SHR™LOS 8T

Y00 001 000 Ya00'001- IV W00 000817060 26Z0°0- 00°0517°060°T 00°09€°060°T
Y00 001 000 Ya00001- 0noo et S0l 0O 0L'89L YatC 01 00°081°'89L 00°096°8S8
Y0001 Ya00°001- 1070 0000071 260070 0000071 00°000°1
%00'001- 007001 0TO'LE 00 ST 67 %TLE" 00°FST°6T 00 ISt op
0N D01 - 2007001 Wt 0Gr 00OLYLEL LE0 G 00'9L8LEL 00601118
00001 000 Ya00°001- 000 ol¥'L AOO00°ZZLEL YleL 00°000°TZLL 000001
00001 L500'001- CalGOL 00°000°¢C11 00°000°€11 00°000°CY
%00°001 - 00001+ %gt's 00°000°L0T°1 00°000°LOT'1 00°000°L91T
WOE00L- 0070 %00°001- 000 %EL'] 00H69°0T9 61 %ELT 00 TGO 0FC 61 00° ST 1TE G
O000L- 0070 %00001- 000 gl 00°F69°0F9 61 el 00°HGO 0RO 61 00°SHT 1261
2000001~ ,00°001- Z6'TT 00 F08 0861 "WT6 TT 00108 0851 00°S80°08T 1
00001 - GO0 1 OTH 00°068°6S 081 9zt 00°068°650°8 1 00TINSEL S
20070 000 To(0°0 00°0 2000 000 240070 000 000
WONO0E- 0070 S00000- 000 o0t 00 161°S8L°L 0,€8¢ TOIFIISLL 00'0F(T98E"L
GOI00L- 000 00001 0070 080 00° 00070911 %86 00°0FE €O 1| 00FSTTEL]
Y0001 2007001 0070 A0 000708 20070 007000707 0007 0T
00001~ 20007001~ ol9'8 000007081 2E0°¢ 00000 SL 00'9¢97¢9]
2400001 400" 001 eoLt0 00°000°096 04 GE 00°0FP 896 00'8LS7S56
ULAORID  LADANE AN AORAD  ANAIWWOXAM  HAAOIMd  (NAININODHM  MA AOMd (LIS 100 ang
HAAQ WETOA UAAG HALLININOD  dMAQ  HOLIVAISININAY A0 Lanan WILOA
AONVIL) 7707 Ad HONVHD AINVNLL AONVIL) NAOL AONVHD 20T Ad 1202 Ad
% % LAanans % LD % IV 12702
TT0T XA TeozT Ad
Zl Jo 6 0Bey TYNId - 1H0dIY 1SIN0IN 13DANG ZZAS

ONILIIN NMOL TVNNNY LZ20Z
MOLS 40 NMOL

LSO 1ADUNE IV LOL
AIIARMMS LEA T IVLOL,

LA

RILLVIN NO LSYRAMINT

IATRI-SNYOT AAVAODINGLL NO NI
LANANH-NON LHHA TN HL-ONOT INI
SOUNOHLEEICT NALL-DNOT NO NI

LSHRN

IVAIDNTED ONRELLVIX

TANGING I NONALHCINRLL-ONO ENI|d MLLVIN

LA INHL-ONOT NI-Md ONIMNLYVIN

TVAIINTA

SEDIAMAS LHIA

NOLLVOIT 'TV.LOL

TINSS

SSV LORLISIA

INFIINSSHSSY HLOLEL DON NVINSLLONIN
LNINSSHESY LSIA HOS DI VHOLISYN

N NOLLV OO IVROLLY DOA HAHLLO

S.LORLESIA "TOOILY

NOLLV. O

IV LOL LADME TVALINOIN TVAANAD
SASNJINH AL NANOL TVILOL
ANOHIHTAL

SUNOH B HIONYANSNI
HONYUNSENT dNOUD

SASNHINY AL NAAOL

Lgoz/eiv “8leq



2600001~ 000 2600001~ 000 %6712 00°00£°TEL 29€'7T 00 SLEPEL 00°€L9009
2000 %00'0 9500°001 G0°000'6 2600°001 00°000°6 00’0
9400001 - 00001~ 00001 - 000 007001~ 00°0 00000701
200001~ 2007001~ “00°001- 000 2007001 000 00°000°t
00°001- 00001~ OolHYOL- 00000761 2ol 9L~ 00°000°T1 00000708
200°001- 2600001 - %a00°0 000082 26000 00°008°C 00008
9000 9400°0 UL00'001 00000702 a00°001 00000707 00°0
“o00°0 %6000 “500°001 00°000°¢1 25007001 00°000°ST 000
050070 2o00 (1 2600°001 00°000°08 SO0 00 007000708 000
9000'0 26000 2600 001 00000701 26007001 00°000°01 00°0
400001 - 9500°001 - Y0000 00000771 Yal0°001- 00’0 0000071
90070 %000 00001 00°000°0F 200°001 00°000°0F 00'0
260070 260070 00001 00°000°¢ 200001 00°000°s 00°0
2600°001- 2600'001- 999°0%- 00 o0n'sy a0 00 ELt 08 Q0 SLE 0
“o00°0 %000 Yo 001 00°00€°1 2%00°001 00'005°1 000
%00°001~ 00001~ 96L999 00000707 %6999 007000707 00°000°C1
2600001~ 007001 - LPTINeTY 00°00€°9 00708 0000879 K0°000°¢
2600 001 - S0 O0E- %0tL 6" 00°006°9C OatL 6" 0000697 0000867
20000 Y0070 2u00°001 00°000°01 G001 00°000701 000
2600001 - 2o00°001- 1DEPNE] 01 PAAOIY 4007001 - 400 200001~ 000 00°009°8
400001~ 2600001~ C600°0 00°000°¢ 200070 00'000°¢ 00°000°¢
Y00 00 - Sa00°001- 000t 000097 200" 0t 00°009°¢ 00°000°F
2u00°001- 900001~ 60070 00 000°SH | %8Y1 00°000°LE] 007000 S|
2500°001 - ol 001~ 25000 00°008 %al)()'0) 00°00€ 0000
2500001~ %o00'001- 90070 000069 96000 00°000°9 00'000°9
%o00°001- 00001~ 080°eT 0000077y %080°T 00°000°TE Q0°000°9¢
5007001~ 00001+ L0070 00°000°6 1 200070 00000761 00°000°€1
OO0 001 00001 - D8ECl 00°000°¢L OBECE GO 000SL ' 000°€9
2600001~ 200001~ 9a00001- 00’0 2%00°001- 00°0 00°00¢°¢
07001~ 00001~ 44000 00°00T R N(] 00002 00°007
007001~ 900001 - Dat6 0L 00000771 Sot6 0L 00°000°C1 000081+
200001 - 20007001~ %000 00°000°¢ Yol 00°000°¢ 00°000°¢
9600001 - 4a00'001- 26000 D0 000°¢ 1 0000 00'000°€1 00°000°¢1
a0 001 - “a00°001 - %6000 D0 00T 200°0 00°000°1 00°000°1
600001 “400°001 - 000 00°000°6Z 2500°0 00°000°8C 00°000°¢
2600001~ 2600°001- 260070 00°000°¢ 25000 0H0°000°¢ NS
2a00°001- 2o00° 001+ 26000 00"000°C 25000 00°000°7 00°000°C
9500°001- °600°001- C400°0§ OO 000°SL Yl 0€ 00°000°L Q0°000°0¢
%0070 250070 WEPNE 01 PAIAOIY 2450070 00°0 200070 00°0 000

HA HORId LaHdand HA MO ONIININODAYN  HA MO UNTININODHY HAA MO AALSHNOM LAaDANd

AHAO TMLLOA HAANO IINIXNO)D HAANO AMOLVALSINTINAY UAAO Liang M 1LOA
HONVHD 70T XA ADNYHD HINVNIA HAONVIID NAMOL ADNVHD T A 120T Ad
Yo Y% LaroDdans % LA Yo NIV 1Z0T
T A 0T A

Zl o) ebed

TYNIE - LHOd3Y 1S3ND3IY L39ang ZzAd
ONILIZW NMOL TYNNNY 1202

MOLS 40 NMOL

HIVIAJO™AV ANV ASIVH - SHTILAV IVIIIS

SLYIN NOLLOHLOMd aNOO¥D AMALAING D

ADMAAMIS NOLLY LUOd SNV RLL NVA IV MLLNOININOD
HHTIVIL AMALIINGD

NOLIVSNHANOD INAINAO TAINANG

ANNVHTD ¥IAR LHEVSSV- AVO OL NOLLNERLLNGD

A ASNADT ANV 1IN AN INO

SNOLLYOLUSSY 1O LNFUNG TN O ZINTTAIARS R DIV VS
AAVALIOS OLLSONOVIA AV NHOIH

SHDIARELS DNISOOH CERIVHS

SINANTINOT LINYAd +SIN

TOAULY A LVOL LLEIVS NOOS SNV
SHTIVMALTORIDY ALNIOD YTOAH0N

NOISSININOO TVRLLSNUND % LNAINAO TLIA AT DINONODA
NOLEVIAINT LI IVAO MALY M NOOE TV ]
CINAL NOLLYAODAHA AVAFIOH

SLLEANGIE SNYHILLHA

AONVNGLINIVIN LOY T DNV IV DING TN

ASMAN MOLS

AONVNLINIVIN SUIOH ALV A

INFLLSAS NOLIVOETILON XONHOMIING

INVEDOM HALLNAINI TV ROLLY D01
FENIV.INOD ISV ATIOS TVAIDIN 1IN
AVANOLLOA T IO LSV SON0UEYZVT
HOLVAALO ALY A

SAVACLLY AT MV di

SASNHAN QEINIOVIN avod

ISIADNRIAS LONNOD TNWLLELD

SCRIOORE NAVOL ONTHIV AR ANV ONICINIEL
NOLLVIYIVA LLMIOMd-LSISSY A0
GNVETLSITLL NOLLY \LASNOLD

NV MHLSYIN L IISNODNION = IV O8H HNINNV Td
SHRANSYAN ANV SLHOEIA

SCRAOIT IVIONVNEL SNAMOL LKV
SASVHORL L TIVING § VTS
RAASOTRRAOS U LLLL NV 11000 ANV

HOLAMMS "TVOII]

CINDL HARMAS T

ALVIAdOUAIY ANV ASIVH - SIE LIV IVIDAIS

L2ozmiv @eqg



200001~ 20007001~ %l C D0°860°LLO'T RN 00°869°LLO’] 00°BEGPTOT]
20000 26000 %001 2o00°0
2600°0 200'0 00°0 240070
2000001~ 000 2o00°001- 000 2a89°CY 00°61F €88 %a80°LER 006198579 00°¢£87099
60070 070 250070 D070
250070 200'0 %00°0 20070
007001~ 2500'001 - °a00001- o0 001~ 000007011
25007001~ 2500001~ 2o00°001- 20001~ 00000701 1
Y000 250070 Y000 60070 00°0
“a00° 001 5007001~ 00001~ 2600001~ 00°SER°L6L
007001 5007001 - H00'001- 200001~ 000007+
200070 260070 26000 200070 000
99000 90070 00001 00°000°€Y 25007001 00°000°¢Y 00°0
%000 %00°0 200001 00°000°89 2500001 00°000°89 00°0
00070 26000 25007001 00°000°6¢ | 25007001 Q0 000est 000
20000 200°0 2500001 00°000°¢81 26007001 00°000°¢8 1 00°0
96000 Ua00°0 Y0070 Y007 001 00°000°00t 00°0
20000 000 V000 2500001 00°000°00€"| 00°0
2a00°0 2u00°0 50070 0001 00°000°00F 00°0
2000 20000 2500001 007008 €01 Sa00°001 00000 6L 000
260070 ©000°0 Y0001 007000709 05007001 00000709 0070
%0070 Ca00'0) G007 00 Q0000 1L T 001 0000071 £ 000
260070 250070 200001 00°000°09 o000 1 00°000709 000

00°0 2u00°0) O 00T 00°000°08 a0 001 00060070y 0o
Y000 2o00°0 2000001 G0 000°LY 2000001 00°000°LY 000
90070 260070 00°001 61986 %000 001 00°619°86 000
a0 001~ 00°0 00700 - 00°0 22y 8P 08208069 ey 06996991 FCOTE COr
S0 001 - 00001 - %ol t'8- 00'000°6Z 00°000°¢T PLSOTLT
So0) 0 2000 26007001 00°000°00¢ 000 00°0
00001~ 5007001~ 9L 99 000000 9599 00000708 00°00€°LE
200001 - 007001 - OpSLE ] 00°Y90°v81 9L 0" OF' L 681 0L 1F6T09 ]
2000°0 960070 20070 2000 000
200001~ 2500001+ 90070 00°0007¢xT 50070 00°000°¢8T 00°0007¢YT
9000001~ 96007001~ V6L ES DeLTY's RN 0S°LT9Y 06 ey
©400°001- 5007001~ EXTIISESS 007519y RETHINESS 00°¢19°¢ 00°88ET
HA "Od AMAORMI  ANTIWINODAN AN HOIHd ANAININOOTH AN AOLUI AALSANOTY LAaHdnd

HHAO HHAO HALLIININOD) HHAO HOINVHISININGY UNAO Liang (LLOA
ADONVHD AONVIHD AINVNIA ADNVHD) NAOL HONVHD TTOT XA 120T XA
Y % LAHAns o Lanang %o INIV 1T0T
T A CTOT A

Zl Jo 1| ebey

TVNIL - L0433 1S3ND3Y L3DANG ZZAd
ONILITW NMOL TYNNNY 1202
MOLS 40 NMOL

INTINHALLAY ALNNOD
SLIDLAA AVTAIAAO
UASIVA A4 OL SLIDLIAA NOLLVTdOdddY

SHIDLLAY IVLIIV D TV LOL

SENFUNELAOMAINT ONICU I AV ]
INANAOVTE LI T AVAAVOS
ONIGNDL SLAHRALS LT IdINOD)
SLNAWHAOMIINI "TOOHDS T TVH
ISV MO AVADIH
(ANS) MASID 40U 10d
ONBRINL Y ONIOV RIS ANV T AHHO.LOO
IS DI

NOMRL dINOA TN 9 TIVING

8861 TIS MOMAL LMo

NOLLISEIO0OV INIOd MO TV
NOLLISINOOV SOV MOLS
NOLIVAONZR "TIVH NAVOL

SHAVEDA SHLLI IOV

LOTTONINRIVA NOLLVLS HO1IOd

AN LOONNLL

AMELLS HOCRI™MOD M
ONIAN SLRLES LA TdINOD
SINHINHAOUINIT "TOOHIS T IVH

{ANS) SHASL D HO110d

SATTILAV IV LIAV.)

MLASNVRLL 3 SLIV RIFOM LIV -8 TOLIAY IV

SLOT ARMTANGLD A0 IVS

NOLLVZITIEHY LS OL HSV.D) HilMd

NINCY HELLIININOD NOLLY ARSI LEINOININGD
d

HHAAO OL SIVIARS AV TTRHAO

LAY O0 HSV D MR

NGOV LEAN-ININOD SNOOD

LSIRLL O INIVIN ANV NOLLY AYHSNOD
HILISNYLL B SLLVE-AOUIAY - SIIDLLAV VLS

L2oe/8iv #ieq



— —— ———

007001 - 00°0 20007001 - 00°0 099°¢ 00 LTI L 208y 000017 6LF] CER0F 06| SIGLLE V)X XVLIVIOL
“e0°001- 2007001~ o091 00°000°06T 20’1~ Q00007 08T CYBOOTST LAdINHN B SINHINLLYVAY HO0d AONVAOTTY
2007001 - 00°0 2007001~ 00°0 70T 00er9Ell o070 QOO LT QOTOFLLL TVINHINNUAAOOUAINT TVLOL
2007001 - “o00°001- 00070 000rLT 2070 00°0FL™T orLe ADAVHOMAS TV AN INM-NON AINY
2o00°0 o000 RN 200070 0070 NV ALNOOD
2ol0"001- 2o00°001- Lot Sl 00°Cr9 T 0070 00°808°8y 008088 SNVUL TVNOBEYY
00001~ “a00°001- a0t 16~ D016 %0070 00°060°01 00060701 VN
2007001 - 2007001~ “el6'C 0086 o000 L8 Q0°TLYE TTONTIO0 DNINNY I VHRIV OMLAIN
2070 200070 2ol o070 000 INHINSSHSSV NOLLY AMHSNOD KON
o001~ 00001~ o051 00°8¢8°C 2a00°0 00°YPET 00'Eree LSIA TRLINOD NOLLOY T IO M1V OWLAIN
%0001~ Yo 007001~ YobL'T 00018 FC 20070 00°6FeTE ¢ (PN SEOHFO¥ "TONLNOD OLINOSOIN
“a00°0 %0070 0000 200070 Q0’0 NOLLYONCC TVIDHAS

X

NRIVIELY A

S0 ANV AL

AN MO REC

e UL O ONIININODME  dA MORId  Q ININOODTY ¥ MO1Ud AALSHANOMA LADdang

HAAO TLLOA HAAO MLLLININO) HANO AOINVALSININGY AAAO LAaHang AULOA
AONVEHD 0T A ADNVHD HINVNIA AONVHD NAMOL HONVEHD 0T A 1207 Ad
Yo Yo LAnang Yo LD Yo ININ 1202
0T A4 TWT A4

Tl jo z| abeyd TUNIH - L¥0d3Y 1S3ND3Y 139aNg ZzZA4
ONILLIIW NMOL TVNNNY 1202

MOLS 4O NMOL

LE0Z/8/F ‘BleqQ



MINUTES



Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes
Tuesday, March 23, 2021
Stow Town Building & Via Zoom

Attending in the Warren Room in the Stow Town Building: Chair Thomas Ryan, Megan Birch-
McMichael, and Cortni Frecha. Attending remotely via Zoom: James Salvie, and Ellen Sturgis.

Also present in the Warren Room: Town Administrator Denise Dembkoski.
Chairman Ryan called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

Public Input: Town Clerk Linda Hathaway said that voter registration can be done online through the
Secretary of State’s web portal (sec.state.ma.us/ovr/). The deadline to register to vote is April 16, 2021 for
the May 8, 2021 Annual Town Election. The deadline to register to vote is April 30, 2021 for the May 22,
2021 Annual Town Meeting. Vote by mail is coming up and flyers will be sent out soon and will include
an application. Applications are also available online now on the Town Clerk’s webpage.

The Town Clerk also reminded people to license their dogs and return their census forms.

Chairman’s Comments: This Saturday, March 27" from 11 a.m. to 2 p.m. is the “Stuff A Cruiser” food
drive at the Lower Village Common. The Planning Board is having a public forum tonight via zoom
regarding Active Adult Neighborhoods.

Appointments
Andrea Wikerd to the NRSD Audit Advisory Committee (Joint Appointment with the Finance

Committee)
The Board thanked Ms. Wikerd for stepping forward and appreciates her willingness to do this.

In conjunction with the Finance Committee, Selectwoman Birch-McMichael moved to appoint Andrea
Wikerd to the NRSD Audit Advisory Committee for a term expiring June 30, 2022. Selectwoman Frecha
seconded, and the motion was approved unanimously (5-0).

The Finance Committee had a majority present and also voted to appoint Andrea Wikerd.

Allison Alter to the Stow Cultural Council
The Board spoke briefly with Ms. Alter and thanked her for stepping forward.

Selectwoman Birch-McMichael moved to appoint Allison Alter to the Stow Cultural Council, for a three-
year term expiring March 22, 2024. Selectwoman Frecha seconded, and the motion was approved
unanimously (5-0).

Michael Naill to the Zoning Board of Appeals
The Board spoke briefly with Mr. Naill and thanked him for stepping forward.

Selectwoman Birch-McMichael moved to appoint Michael Naill to the Zoning Board of Appeals, for the
remainder of a five-year term expiring June 30, 2024. Selectwoman Frecha seconded, and the motion was
approved unanimously (5-0).

Liza Mattison to the Conservation Commission
The Board spoke briefly with Ms. Mattison and thanked her for stepping forward. Selectwoman Frecha
noted she served on the Commission with Liza’s mother and we now have a second generation serving.

Selectwoman Birch-McMichael moved to appoint Liza Mattison to the Conservation Commission, for the
remainder of a three-year term expiring June 30, 2022. Selectwoman Frecha seconded, and the motion
was approved unanimously (5-0).

Board of Selectmen Meeting
March 23, 2021 1
DRAFT



Charlie Aaronson to the Council on Aging
The Board spoke briefly with Mr. Aronson and thanked him for stepping forward. COA Director Alyson
Toole said she is in support of the decision and he will be a great asset to the Town.

Selectwoman Birch-McMichael moved to appoint Charlie Aaronson to the Council on Aging, for an
indefinite term. Selectwoman Frecha seconded, and the motion was approved unanimously (5-0).

Weston “Wes” Fisher to the Board of Registrars

Selectwoman Birch-McMichael moved to appoint Weston “Wes " Fisher, Democral, to the Board of
Registrar of Voters, for the remainder of a three-year term expiring June 30, 2023. Selectwoman Frecha
seconded, and the motion was approved unanimously (5-0).

Statement Regarding Racism and Violence Against Asian-Americans

Selectwoman Birch-McMichael appreciated that a statement was put out from the Town Administrator
and the Police Chief decrying the recent uptick in violence against the Asian-American and Pacific
Islanders community and asked if the Board would like to put out a similar statement. Selectwoman
Sturgis suggested that the Board be added to the existing statement.

Selectwoman Birch-McMichael moved that the statement issued last week by the Town Administrator and
the Chief of Police is amended to include the Board of Selectmen. Selectwoman Frecha seconded, and the
motion was approved unanimously (5-0).

Donation of Gym Equipment

There is a letter of support from Chief Michael Sallese, estimating the value at $6000.00 of the equipment
being donated to the Police Department gym by resident and Acting Sergeant David Goguen. Selectman
Salvie noted for the record that this is some serious gym equipment to have at the house.

Selectwoman Birch-McMichael moved to accept the gym equipment for the Police Department donated
by David Goguen. Selectwoman Frecha seconded, and the motion was approved unanimously (5-0).

Polling Hours for the May 8, 2021 Annual Town Election

Town Clerk Linda Hathaway proposed a Saturday election from 10 a.m. to 4 p.m. She is not proposing
in-person early voting. If someone wants to volunteer to help with the election, please email or call the
Town Clerk’s office. If you voted via early voting in the past, you still need to register again for this year.

The Stow Independent has agreed to do Candidates Night remotely on Wednesday, April 14, 2021.
Owner/Editor Cyndy Bremer has sent out information to the candidates.

Selectwoman Birch-McMichael moved, in accordance with MGL Chapter 54, section 64, to reduce the
polling hours for Stow’s Annual Town Election on Saturday, May 8 to 10 AM to 4 PM. Selectwoman
Frecha seconded, and the motion was approved unanimously (5-0).

Stow Clean Up Day — Saturday, April 24, 2021

Resident Sandy Taft was present via Zoom and introduced Jennifer Henderson, also present via Zoom.
Mr. Taft said the Department of Public Health advised local Boards of Health that clean-ups are permitted
with a maximum group size of 25 per group. Registration will be at the Lower Common and there will be
2 tables to ensure social distancing. Ms. Henderson proposed using SignUpGenius so people could pre-
register and choose in advance the street(s) that they will clean over the weekend. The Highway
Department will pick up the bags on Monday. No banner will be hung this year; the only formal signage
would be small signs in town businesses and 4 political-style yard signs.

Board of Selectmen Meeting
March 23, 2021 )
DRAFT



Selectwoman Birch-McMichael moved to permit Sandy Taft and his group of volunteers to use the town’s
Lower Common on Saturday, April 24, 2021 from 7 a.m. to 12:30 p.m., for the annual Stow Clean Up
Day. Bags will be handed out from 8 a.m. until 12 noon and COVID-19 precautions will be taken.
Selectwoman Frecha seconded, and the motion was approved unanimously (5-0).

Covenant for Plantation Apartments/Stow Elderly Housing Corporation
Both Chairman Ryan and Selectman Salvie recused themselves, and the Chairman turned the meeting
over to Selectwoman Frecha at 7:35 p.m.

Town Counsel Barbara Carboni was present via Zoom. Atty. Carboni said the proposed covenant from
the ZBA (Zoning Board of Appeals) arose from the hearing process for the comprehensive permit for
Plantation II. The project as permitted is not consistent and conflicts with some terms of the 1982
covenant that was entered into by the Board of Selectmen and Stow Elderly Housing at the time of the
original comprehensive permit. The ZBA found that they did not have the authority to undo the covenant
or to enter into a new one, as the Board of Selectmen was the party to the covenant. The ZBA wants to
offer the Selectmen the benefit of what it has learned during the permit process and to propose language
for the Board to review when they consider entering into a new covenant.

Peter Munkenbeck, consultant for the project, was present via Zoom and introduced Attorney Rita
Schwantes of Klein Hornig who was also present via Zoom.

Atty. Schwantes represents Stow Elderly Housing Corp. and explained the two covenants submitted to the
Board of Selectmen. One is to amend the existing 1982 covenant permitting the existing 50-unit
Plantation Apartments development, and the other is to permit the new proposed 37-unit Plantation
Apartments II. There are still some components of the project to be completed by the applicant and she
proposed approving and signing the covenants, and holding them in escrow and to not record them until
the building permits are pulled and the project moves forward.

Selectwoman Birch-McMichael moved to accept and sign the covenants for Plantation Apartments/Stow
Elderly Housing Corporation as presented on March 23, 2021. Selectwoman Sturgis seconded, and the
motion was approved unanimously (3-0) by a by roll call vote: Selectwoman Birch-McMichael —aye,
Selectwoman Sturgis —aye, and Chairwoman Frecha -aye.

Town Administrator Dembkoski informed the Board that Atty. Carboni will be leaving our town counsel
firm and moving to the municipal sector. The Board thanked her and wished her the best of luck.

Selectman Ryan resumed as Chair at 7:57 PM.

Town Hall Restoration Project

Vin Antil, Chairman of the Community Preservation Committee (CPC) was present via Zoom.

Mr. Antil said the CPC did not vote to support $3.5 million for the Town Hall Project for the upcoming
Town Meeting Warrant. The CPC is willing to put in $1.75 million to give the Town an opportunity to
move forward this year, and to show their support for the project.

Doug Hyde, Chairman of the Town Hall Restoration Committee (THRC), was present via Zoom.

Mr. Hyde said what his committee needs now is a commitment from the Board to put an article on the
Town Meeting Warrant; they do not necessarily need the Board’s support now for the article, as that can
be discussed later.

Selectwoman Birch-McMichael feels strongly that this is not the year for this project as it is not ready,
and it is being rushed to be put on the warrant this year. She strongly supports the project but does not
support this timeline and putting it on the warrant for the $3.5 million.

Selectwoman Frecha said the funding conversation has been useful and it has become clear that the Board
should probably defer. She strongly supports the project and would like to see a Friends of the Town Hall
established, as a public relations campaign for the project would make a difference.

Board of Selectmen Meeting
March 23, 2021 3
DRAFT



Selectwoman Sturgis loves it as an iconic building but said we have not heard the answer to what we are
going to do with the building. She stated the Selectmen are supposed to show leadership and thus she
does not support putting it on the warrant.

Selectman Salvie does not support the $3.75 million and suggested putting it off for a year. He does not
believe in Selectmen denying another department or board the ability to go to Town Meeting and make
their case. He would support a warrant article only if it provided for the excess funding outside of the
existing levy limit.

Chairman Ryan believes the THRC should pare the project back. He would not support a debt exclusion.
He would not deny the CPC putting the $1.75 million on the warrant but would recommend against it, or
anything other than CPA funding, at Town Meeting.

Town Administrator Dembkoski said a vote of an article at Town Meeting requires a funding source. If it
is more than what CPA is authorizing you need either a debt exclusion or to fund it within the levy limit.
She recommends a debt exclusion. The THRC meets tomorrow night and if they want a debt exclusion,
the Selectmen could call a special meeting to meet the deadline for the election warrant, or it could go to
Town Meeting and appear as a debt exclusion question at the next election in May 2022,

Hudson Housing Area and Adjacent Property

The Department of the Army is asking for input on a parcel they are selling which is approximately 46
acres of the Devens Annex, with approximately 5-10 undeveloped acres in Stow. Town Planner Jesse
Steadman and Conservation Director Kathy Sferra did not have any comments. It is being sold ‘as-is’ and
if there is further development, including the Stow land, they would have to follow the proper process.

Town Administrator’s Report

» The CPC has approved the Kane Land Trail Project going forward to Town Meeting.

Denise approved an Eagle Scout’s request to build a boardwalk for the back culvert with the
understanding that the project has to pass at Town Meeting.

e The Town has joined the City of Marlborough as part of a vaccine collaborative through
Marlborough Hospital. Vaccines will be at the Courtyard Marriott in Marlborough with 25% of
the appointments guaranteed to the cities and towns in the collaborative, which also includes
Hudson and Berlin.

e The Board has received the draft of the FY22 Budget. It will be discussed at the next meeting.

Minutes of the March 9, 2021 Meeting
Selectwoman Birch-McMichael moved to accept the meeting minutes of March 9, 2021 with amendments.
Selectwoman Frecha seconded the motion, and it was approved unanimously (5-0).

Liaison Reports
e Selectwoman Sturgis attended a MA Selectmen’s Association workshop on civil discourse which
included suggestions for Selectboards. The COA (Council On Aging) is doing a bang-up job
helping seniors sign up for vaccines. For those who want to help, there is a volunteer form on the

COA website.
She would like a future agenda to include a discussion of the roles of liaisons and what their
authority is as a liaison.

e Remaining reports were tabled until the next meeting.

Correspondence: No comments from the Board.

Board of Selectmen Meeting
March 23, 2021 4
DRAFT



Adjournment
At 8:33 p.m. Selectwoman Birch-McMichael moved to adjourn. Selectwoman Frecha seconded the

motion, and it was passed unanimously (5-0).

Respectfully submitted,

{]Eyoe Sampson

Executive Assistant

Documents used at this meeting:

March 9, 2020 Drafi Minutes
Additional documents can be found in the Selectmen’s Office filed with meeting folder.

Board of Selectmen Meeting
March 23, 2021
DRAFT



Board of Selectmen’s Meeting
Wednesday, July 8, 2020
Stow Town Building & Via Zoom

Present at the meeting: Chair Thomas Ryan, James Salvie, Cortni Frecha, Megan Birch-McMichael, and
Ellen Sturgis.

Also present: Town Administrator William Wrigley and Executive Assistant Maureen McKeon.

Chairman Ryan called the meeting to order at 7 p.m.

Chairman’s Comments: The Chairman welcomed new members Ellen Sturgis and Megan Birch-
McMichael to the Board. He thanked Brian Burke and Don Hawkes for their service, and Jim Salvie for
being the chairman last year.

The Pine Bluffs Recreation Area is open to residents and their guests only. There is an attendant at the
main gate from 10 a.m. to 6 p.m. to collect a $10 parking fee and verify residency. Parking is limited to
30 cars. Parents must stay with their children and are not allowed to just drop them off. Bathrooms will
remain closed. The beach is not open and there is no lifeguard; swimming is at your own risk.

Public Input: Town Clerk Linda Hathaway reported that there will be in-person early voting for the
September primary, and there will also be vote by mail. The Secretary of State’s office is mailing out
applications for vote by mail for the Primary and the November Election to all registered voters.

The 2020 Census is ongoing. Bolton leads the state with an 86% response and Stow is second at 85.6%.
Nationwide, Bolton is tied for 135" place and Stow is tied for 166™ place.

Minutes:

Selectwoman Frecha moved to accept the meeting minutes of the June 6, 2020 meeting as drafted.
Selectman Salvie seconded the motion, and it passed 3-0-2 with Selectwoman Birch-McMichael and
Selectwoman Sturgis abstaining.

Correspondence: The Board discussed items that they would like to see on upcoming agendas.

Sign BAN (Bond Anticipation Note) for Lower Village Construction Project
Town Administrator Wrigley introduced Stow’s new Treasurer/Collector, Brad Brightman.

Mr. Brightman presented a history of this Note, which was first issued on 12/16/2017. The Note is being
renewed for $420,000 at 0.95%. Town Administrator Wrigley said the original purpose of a BAN is for
short-term temporary borrowing for a project that extends several years, and the permanent bond comes at
the conclusion of the project. Mr. Brightman said it is an economical way to borrow money. Town
Administrator Wrigley said the vote was taken by the previous Board to issue it and tonight the Board
needs to sign the Note.

Approve and Sign Contract for the New Town Administrator

The Board decided that they did not need to convene in Executive Session.

Selectman Salvie wanted to clarify the work schedule, which is a full 40 hours between Monday and
Thursday, with Friday being a half-day and offering flexibility. For the first 4 months Ms. Dembkoski
will be finishing up in Groveland on Fridays. Chairman Ryan said that helping the transition in her former
town is a good thing and shows professionalism. He appreciates the reciprocity in the inclusion of this
provision if she were to leave Stow.

Selectwoman Sturgis asked about the cell phone allowance, and do we issue company cell phones to
senior staff. Town Administrator Wrigley said the Chiefs are reimbursed for their work-related calls on
their personal cell phones, and we have been doing it for many years with no issues.

Board of Selectmen Meeting
July 8, 2020 1
DRAFT



Selectwoman Frecha moved that the Selectmen approve and sign the contract for new Town Administrator
Denise Dembkoski. Selectman Salvie seconded the motion, and it passed unanimously (5-0).

CARES Grant

Fire Chief Joe Landry was present via Zoom.

The Chief had provided the Board with background information before the meeting and explained the
parameters for submitting expenses related to COVID-19. Stow’s allotment of the CARES Grant money
1s a maximum of $636,042.00, which is sitting in the system waiting for requests for reimbursement. Each
request must meet certain criteria as the grant will only fund things that you cannot get via other federal
funding sources. Chairman Ryan added that this helps fund unbudgeted items (such as the tent for Town
Meeting) that are absolutely necessary to keep a town functioning. The Chief has had conversations in
which he asked do you really need this; if we didn’t have the CARES money would you still do this. It
does not replace lost revenues. If something is declined, then the Town has to find a way to fund it.

Annual Town Meeting Plans

Moderator David Walrath was present via Zoom.

The Moderator said that weather is the primary issue. He asked the Board if the decision should be made to
postpone Town Meeting, and if so, at what level of predicted bad weather do we postpone. He then asked
if we do not have a resolution tonight, when would be a reasonable day and time to make a final decision.
Highway Supervisor Steve Nadeau has a very accurate weather app that will be utilized. After much
discussion, it was decided that the Moderator will make a decision no later than Friday morning. A rain
date of Saturday, July 18" has been publicized. The tents will go up tomorrow and will stay up until next
weekend. The Board agreed with the Moderator’s request that Sunday July 12" also be considered as a rain
date with a start time of 11:30 a.m. If Town Meeting is postponed, a reverse 911 call will go out and an
update will be posted to the Town’s website. The details for COVID-19 precautions were discussed.

The Board agreed that the Chair can coordinate directly with the Moderator and Mr. Nadeau on behalf of
the Board.

Annual Town Meeting Warrant Articles 4, 41, 44, 52, 58, 59, 60, 61 and Any Other Articles

Town Administrator Wrigley discussed the current budget (Article 4-General Budget for Fiscal Year
2021) and the few changes that were made since the budget was first presented in March. The budget has
been decreased by $46,000. The budget was previously voted on with unanimous support by the Board.

Town Administrator Wrigley left the meeting at 8:46 p.m.

After some discussion, the Board agreed to revoke the prior Board’s votes, then review those votes and
discuss each article. The new Board would then recommend approval on the articles.

Selectman Salvie moved that the Board reconsider its recommendations on Articles 4, 41, 44, 59, 60 and
61. Selectwoman Frecha seconded the motion, and it passed unanimously (5-0).

Selectman Salvie moved that the Board make favorable recommendations on Articles 4, 41, 44, 59, 60
and 61. Selectwoman Frecha seconded the motion, and it passed unanimously (5-0).

Selectman Salvie moved that the Board reconsider its recommendation on Article 52. Selectwoman
Frecha seconded the motion, and it passed unanimously (5-0).

Selectman Salvie moved that the Board recommend approval on Article 52. Selectwoman Frecha
seconded the motion, and it passed 4-0-1 with Chairman Ryan abstaining.

Selectman Salvie moved that the Board reconsider its recommendation on Article 58. Selectwoman
Frecha seconded the motion, and it passed unanimously (5-0).

Board of Selectmen Meeting
July 8, 2020 2
DRAFT



Selectman Salvie moved that the Board recommend approval on Article 58. Selectwoman Frecha
seconded the motion for discussion.

Selectman Salvie thinks it is a good idea but due to the coronavirus he feels we need to start saying ‘no’
to things that are a good idea, but just not enough of a good idea. He would not support it at this time.

Selectwoman Birch-McMichael feels it needs to get up to code, but if we don’t have a specific usage it is
not a good idea to spend money on it.

Selectwoman Frecha said it is CPA funds which is money that is already put aside specifically for historic
preservation and it can’t be used for other reasons. She is a member of the Town Hall Restoration
Committee (THRC) and feels it is a small Feasibility Study that is needed to understand the full
ramifications of the project.

Selectwoman Sturgis is against this and feels if we don’t have an absolute reason for the usage then we
shouldn’t spend $1 on design funds. When using design funds you are designing for a purpose. CPA
funds are tax dollars and we have other historic places in town.

Selectwoman Frecha says the building was heavily used before; we are social animals and we will want to
gather again. The usage declined as the building became less comfortable. It is part of what is cool about
Stow and this is about making it a usable building for the future.

Chairman Ryan is also on the THRC and said they have talked about bringing it up to code. Its use is
irrelevant as there are no major reconfigurations and they are not changing the main function hall area, just
fixing it. An elevator may be added between the bottom floor and the main floor where the large hall is
located. They want to save a historical building and improve it to make it more usable and energy efficient.
Selectwoman Birch-McMichael commented that we don’t know what a design would be in a post-covid
world. Distance restrictions may be in place for a long time.

Selectwoman Frecha said we know how it has been used traditionally. The Community Center is getting
heavy use. The conversation the Town will have is do we want free or inexpensive space for community
use.

Selectman Salvie moved to withdraw his previous motion and moved that the Board take no position on
Article 58. Selectwoman Frecha seconded the motion, and it passed unanimously (5-0).

Liaison Reports:
e Selectwoman Sturgis asked about the upcoming Board of Health meeting and a permit for the lake.
e Selectwoman Birch-McMichael thought the Planning Board’s warrant article for outdoor dining
should include a template from the BOH for how businesses doing so should behave.
e Selectwoman Frecha reported that the CPC received the timeline for the Pine Point Affordable
Housing building with occupancy ready for August 2021.

Adjournment

At 9:32 p.m. Selectwoman Birch-McMichael moved to adjourn. Selectman Salvie seconded the motion,
and it passed unanimously (5-0).

Respectfully submitted,

Jc; ce faﬁ/amf

Executive Assistant

Documents used at this meeting:
Documents can be found in the Selectmen’s Office filed with the meeting folder.

Board of Selectmen Meeting
July 8, 2020 3
DRAFT



Board of Selectmen’s Meeting
Tuesday, June 18, 2020
Stow Town Building & Via Zoom

Present at the meeting: Chair James Salvie, Brian Burke, Cortni Frecha, and Tom Ryan.

Also present: Town Administrator William Wrigley, Executive Assistant Maureen McKeon,
Town Moderator David Walrath, Town Clerk Linda Hathaway, and Denise Dembkoski.

Mr. Salvie called the meeting to order at 7 p.m.
Public Input: None
Minutes: None

Correspondence: The Board discussed various correspondence and what they would like to see
as upcoming agenda items for discussion.

Chairman’s Comment: None
Executive Session

At 7:07 p.m. Selectman Ryan moved to convene in Executive Session, pursuant to MGL Ch. 304,
Sec. 21(a)(2), to conduct strategy sessions in preparation for negotiation with non-union
personnel and to conduct negotiation with non-union personnel and reconvene to open session.
Selectwomen Frecha seconded the motion, and it was approved unanimously by a roll call vote:
Selectman Ryan -aye, Selectwoman Frecha —aye, Selectman Burke -aye, Chairman Salvie -aye.

At 7:50 p.m. Selectman Ryan motioned to return to Open Session. Selectman Burke seconded the
motion, and it was approved unanimously by a roll call vote: Selectman Ryan, -aye, Selectman
Burke, -aye, Selectwoman Frecha -aye, and Chairman Salvie —aye.

Chairman Salvie announced that the Board is pleased to welcome Denise Dembkoski as the new
Town Administrator for Stow effective September 1, 2020. Chairman Salvie had spoken with
Groveland’s chairman of the Board of Selectmen, who said that Groveland’s loss is Stow’s gain.

Annual Town Meeting Plans

Moderator David Walrath said the date being considered is July 11, 2020. Chairman Salvie said
communication is as important as the date, and the Independent should publish the information
the week before the meeting. The Moderator said there are three possible locations: Hale Middle
School with a combination of indoor/outdoor; the Nashoba football field (Stow’s bylaws allow
for a town meeting in any adjoining town); or Center School with a combination of
indoor/outdoor, or, the Moderator believes it can all be done outside at Center School.

We need to start moving forward with logistics, including getting the school to agree, getting
chairs, and renting portable toilets. The plans for Annual Town Meeting will be discussed further
at the next Selectmen’s meeting.

Joint Appointment to Nashoba Regional School District Audit Advisory Committee
Finance Committee member Richard Eckel and Finance Committee Chair Erika Benedick (joined
late) participated via Zoom.

Board of Selectmen Meeting
June 18, 2020 1
DRAFT



Chairman Salvie said they will note informally that the Finance Committee supports this
appointment as there were only two members of the Finance Committee in attendance.

Selectmen Ryan moved, in a joint appointment with the Finance Committee, to appoint Mark
Jones as Representative to Nashoba Regional School District Audit Advisory Committee for a
one-year tern beginning July 1, 2020 and expiring June 30, 2021. Selectman Burke seconded the
motion, and it was approved unanimously by a roll call vote:

(Finance Committee) Evika Benedick — aye, Richard Eckel — aye,

(Board of Selectmen) Selectwoman Frecha — aye, Selectman Burke — aye, Selectman Ryan — aye,
Chairman Salvie — aye.

Vote to Sign Police and Fire FY 2021 Union Contracts
The contract changes for each union were approved in the March 10, 2020 Executive Session
meeting; tonight’s vote is to sign the 3 -year contracts which are effective July 1, 2020.

Selectwoman Frecha moved to sign the FY 2021 Police and Fire union contracts as discussed.
Selectman Burke seconded the motion, and it was approved unanimously 4-0.

Town Administrator’s 1/12" Budget
The 1/12™ budget of $2,350,148.37 was presented to the Board for approval.

Selectwoman Frecha moved that the Selectmen approve a budget prepared by the Town
Administrator for 1/12" of the fiscal year 2021. Selectman Ryan seconded the motion, and it was
as approved unanimously 4-0.

FY 2020 Year End Budget Line-Item Transfers

Selectwoman Frecha moved that the Selectmen vote to approve the 2020 budget line-item transfers
totaling $45,325.25, from the FY 2020 Principal on Long-Term Debt Account to the accounts
detailed below on the Town Administrator’s recommendation and contingent upon the Finance
Committee’s approval, and as described in a budget transfer recommendation document dated
June 18, 2020. Selectman Burke seconded the motion, and it was approved unanimously 4-0.

. transfer $5,000 to the Audit Town’s Finances Account

o transfer $3,102.50 to the Council on Aging Repair & Maintenance of vehicles account
. transfer $24,222.75 to the Snow & Ice account

. transfer $500 to the Postage account

. transfer $500 to the Payroll & Banking Services account

. transfer $6,000 to the Ultilities (Electric) account

. transfer $6,000 to the Treasurer/Collector Salary account

Town Administrator’s Report: incorporated throughout the meeting.

Liaison Reports:
Chairman Salvie noted that Tim Reed had his last Library Trustees meeting on Wednesday, June
10™ after 28 years of service.

Adjournment
At 9:17 p.m. Selectman Ryan moved to adjourn. Selectman Burke seconded the motion, and it was

passed unanimously 4-0.

Board of Selectmen Meeting
June 18, 2020 2
DRAFT



Respectfully submitted,

(]; e ef M/J’M

Executive Assistant

Documents used at this meeting:

Town Administrator’s 1/12" Budget
Budget Transfer Recommendations
Additional documents can be found in the Selectmen’s Office filed with meeting folder.

Board of Selectmen Meeting
June 18, 2020
DRAFT

(V%]



Board of Selectmen’s Meeting
Tuesday, June 9, 2020
Stow Town Building & Via Zoom

Present at the meeting: Chair James Salvie, Brian Burke, Cortni Frecha, and Tom Ryan.

Also present: Town Administrator William Wrigley and Executive Assistant Maureen McKeon.
Mr. Salvie called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.
Public Input: None

Chairman’s Comments: Chairman Salvie requested a moment of silence for Eila Makey,
former Assistant Treasurer and Treasurer/Tax Collector (retired 1988) and widow of former
Highway Superintendent John Makey who died in May.

Meeting Minutes: Selectman Ryan moved to accept the meeting minutes of May 26, 2020 as
drafted. Selectwoman Frecha seconded the motion, and it was passed unanimously 4-(0.

Correspondence: Selectman Burke mentioned emails from residents on Gleasondale Road
about the trench built by NStar. It is part of the program for energy reliability. If you are an
abutter and have property damage bring it to the Board’s attention.

Finalist Candidates for Town Administrator
The Board discussed the three finalists, Denise Dembkoski, Thomas Guerino, and Kellie Hebert.

Chairman Salvie noted that, by quite a bit, Denise Dembkoski is the best choice. She has
experience in a similar community and sounds like she is a “one-woman band”, and he is
impressed with her budget process. Chairman Salvie was confident that Thomas Guerino could
do the job and thought he did his homework on the town the best by calling department heads.
Chairman Salvie thought Kellie Hebert could do the job although she did not communicate that
well and he liked her emphasis on building relationships.

Selectwoman Frecha would rank them similarly and found that the connection with Ms.
Dembkoski was the strongest. Mr. Guerino is also capable although with a different tone and
would understand Stow due to his history with the Pioneer Valley. Selectwoman Frecha would
choose Kellie Hebert last. Selectwoman Frecha thought she was affable, and she was impressed
with her resume and experience, but thought her answers were less compelling.

Selectman Burke thought they were three superb candidates. He agrees that Denise Dembkoski is
the right fit for the town. She has the background and personality that would work well in this
town and he feels, more importantly, that it is the right fit for her.

Selectman Ryan said Denise Dembkoski has the entire package that they are looking for. She is
smart and no nonsense and he agrees with Selectman Burke that it is a good fit for her also.
Town Administrator Wrigley agreed with the consensus of the first choice. He described Denise

Dembkoski as a “professional of practice” meaning what her resume says she does, she does. She
is potentially a perfect match and could be here for a long time.

Selectman Ryan moved that the Selectmen offer the position of Town Administrator of the Town
of Stow to Denise Dembkoski subject to final background checks and final reference checks.
Selectwoman Frecha seconded the motion, and it was passed unanimously 4-0.

Board of Selectmen Meeting
June 9, 2020 1
DRAFT



Annual Town Meeting

Town Moderator David Walrath thinks we can fit Town Meeting into the Hale Middle School
gymnasium with the auditorium as overflow, or the Center School if we need a larger overflow.
He has been contacted by citizens who are concerned with anything being indoors (due to the
pandemic). Other options would be to start on Monday night indoors, but there could be technical
challenges; find an outdoor space, maybe similar to Maynard’s drive-in Town Meeting, but we
would need a way to transmit audio to the cars and have a plan for voting; or to delay or do the
minimal that we could on Monday then adjourn to some outdoor site on the weekend.

Discussion ensued about various options. Chairman Salvie summarized that the Board is not
comfortable with a meeting completely indoors. They are open to any form of outdoor meeting or
a combination of the two. The Board is skeptical that an outdoor meeting can be put together in
the next 13 days. Postponing Town Meeting will have no effect on the Annual Town Election.

The Board discussed having Town Meeting with a 1/12 budget in June and postponing Town
Meeting to July. Chairman Salvie said this is allowed per Administrative Rule from the
Department of Revenue, and Town Administrator Wrigley added that he already has a 1/12
budget ready. Selectwoman Frecha suggested continuing this conversation at the next meeting.

Annual Town Meeting Warrant Articles

Article 4 — General Budget for Fiscal Year 2021

Selectman Ryan moved that the Selectmen support Article 4. Selectwoman Frecha seconded the
motion.

Chairman Salvie asked for discussion.

Selectman Ryan moved that the Selectmen support Article 4, excluding the item for Nashoba
Regional School District. Selectwoman Frecha seconded the motion, and it was approved 3-0-1
with Selectman Burke abstaining.

Chairman Salvie asked for a motion to reconsider the prior vote.

Selectman Burke moved to reconsider the prior vote. Selectwoman Frecha seconded the motion,
and it was approved unanimously 4-0.

Chairman Salvie asked for a motion to recommend approval of the budget except for the line
items pertaining to Nashoba Regional School District, and Conservation Commission salaries.

Selectman Burke moved to recommend approval of the budget except for the line items pertaining
to Nashoba Regional School District and Conservation Commission salaries. Selectman Ryan
seconded the motion, and it was approved 2-0-2 with Chairman Salvie and Selectman Burke

abstaining.

Selectman Ryan moved to support the Nashoba Regional School District budget. Selectwoman
Frecha seconded the motion, and it was approved 3-0-1 with Selectman Burke abstaining.

Selectman Ryan moved to support the Conservation Commission budget. Selectwoman Frecha
seconded the motion.

Chairman Salvie asked Selectwoman Frecha to chair this motion.

Chairwoman Frecha asked for further discussion, and hearing none, the motion was approved
3-0-1 with Selectman Salvie abstaining.

Chairman Salvie resumed as Chair.

Board of Selectmen Meeting
June 9, 2020 2
DRAFT



Article 41 — Amend General Bylaw - Town Election Date
Selectwoman Frecha moved that the Selectmen support Article 41. Selectman Ryan seconded the
motion for discussion, and it was approved 3-0-1 with Selectman Burke abstaining.

Article 44 —Box Mill Bridge Article 97 Petition
Selectman Ryan moved that the Selectmen support Article 44. Selectwoman Frecha seconded the
motion, and it was approved unanimously 4-0.

Article 52 — Commuter Rail Van Transportation Service
Selectwoman Frecha moved that the Selectmen support Article 52. Selectman Burke seconded the
motion, and it was approved 3-0-1 with Selectman Ryan abstaining.

Article 58 — Design Funds for Stow Town Hall Restoration
Selectman Burke moved that the Selectmen support Article 58. Selectwoman Frecha seconded the
motion, and it was approved 3-0-1 with Chairman Salvie abstaining.

Article 59 — COVID19 Emergency Rental Assistance Fund
Selectwoman Frecha moved that the Selectmen support Article 59. Selectman Burke seconded the
motion, and it was approved unanimously 4-0.

Article 60 — PFAS (Per and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances) Remediation Expenses
Selectman Burke moved that the Selectmen support Article 60. Selectwoman Frecha seconded the
motion, and it was approved unanimously 4-0.

Article 61 — Nashoba Regional School District Feasibility Study

Discussion ensued with Leah Vivirito of the NRSD School Committee.

Selectman Ryan moved that the Selectmen support Article 61. Selectwoman Frecha seconded the
motion, and it was approved unanimously 4-0.

Annual July 1 Appointments

Selectman Ryan moved to make the appointment of individuals and committee members, the
positions having been duly posted for which the applicants have applied, listed as one-year
appointments with terms ending June 30, 2021 as reflected in the list of appointments dated June
9, 2020. Selectwoman Frecha seconded the motion, which was approved unanimously 4-0.

Selectman Ryan moved to make the appointment of individuals and committee members, the
positions having been duly posted for which the applicants have applied, listed as two-year
appointments with terms ending June 30, 2022 as reflected in the list of appointments dated June
9, 2020. Selectwoman Frecha seconded the motion, which was approved unanimously 4-0.

Selectman Ryan moved to make the appointment of individuals and committee members, the
positions having been duly posted for which the applicants have applied, listed as three-year
appointments with terms ending June 30, 2023 as reflected in the list of appointments dated June
9, 2020. Selectwoman Frecha seconded the motion, which was approved unanimously 4-0.

Selectman Ryan moved to make the appointment of individuals and committee members, the
positions having been duly posted for which the applicants have applied, listed as five-year
appointments with terms ending June 30, 2025 as reflected in the list of appointments dated June
9, 2020. Selectwoman Frecha seconded the motion, which was approved unanimously 4-0.

Board of Selectmen Meeting
June 9, 2020 3
DRAFT



Town Administrator’s Report — incorporated throughout the meeting.

Liaison Reports

e Selectwoman Frecha reported that the Conservation Commission said many trees came
down at Lake Boon during the recent storm and if you have a tree that you need removed
and it is within 100 feet of a wetland contact the Conservation Commission. There are
several openings on the Open Space Committee.

® Selectman Ryan said Acting Police Chief Sallese is doing a fine Jjob working with some
of the social justice groups to make sure that everybody stays safe in town. Chairman
Salvie agreed about the Acting Chief, and said the department is gifted with several
officers who are excellent communicators.

® Selectman Burke said the LACAC (Local Access Channel Advisory Committee) had a
public forum via Zoom and it was very successful.

® Chairman Salvie — no report

Executive Session

At 9:05 p.m. Selectman Ryan moved to convene in Executive Session, pursuant to MGL Ch. 304,
Sec. 21(a)(3), for the purpose of considering matters related to a criminal investigation and to
reconvene in Open Session thereafier. Selectwomen Frecha seconded the motion, and it was
passed unanimously by roll call vote: Selectman Burke - aye, Selectman Ryan - aye, Selectwoman
Frecha — aye, and Chairman Salvie — aye.

Reconvene in Open Session

At 9:24 p.m. Selectman Ryan made a motion to return to open session. Selectman Burke seconded
the motion, and it was passed unanimously by roll call vote: Selectman Ryan - aye, Selectman
Burke - aye, Selectwoman Frecha — aye, and Chairman Salvie — aye.

The Board had previously voted to conduct due diligence interviews at the police department as a
result of the events in April concerning former Chief Marino. Chairman Salvie, Selectman Ryan,
and Town Counsel Jonathan Witten (via Zoom) interviewed 10 officers and 4 dispatchers over a
2-day period, with an attorney for the union also present. Each interview was 10-15 minutes in
length. The report drafted by Town Counsel will be released to the public and posted to the
town’s website.

Adjournment
At 9:33 p.m. Selectman Burke moved to adjourn. Selectman Ryan seconded the motion, and it was

approved unanimously 4-0.

Respectfully submitted,

(]0 ce fm/ﬂfﬂfr

Executive Assistant

Documents used at this meeting:

May 26, 2020 Draft Minutes

Annual July 1 Appointment list

KP Law Report re: Interviews with Stow Police Department Officers and Dispatchers
Additional documents can be found in the Selectmen’s Office filed with meeting folder.

Board of Selectmen Meeting
June 9, 2020 4
DRAFT




Board of Selectmen Meeting - 6/9/2020

One-year Appointments, with terms ending on June 30, 2021:

Recreation Commission: Samantha Altieri, Michael Busch, Dan
Nicholson and Eric Sullivan

Complete Streets Committee: Eve Fischer

Emergency Management Officer: Fire Chief Joseph Landry

Fence Viewers: Selectmen

Hudson Light & Power Representative: Arnold Epstein
Montachusett Area Regional Transport (MART): Alyson Toole
Tree Warden: Bruce E. Fletcher

Veterans' Graves Committee: Patricia Bolton, Martha Monroe and
Tom Zavorski

Town Counsel: Jon Witten and Barbara Huggins Carboni, KP Law,
e,

Superintendent of Streets: Stephen Nadeau

Full-time Firefighters:

Joseph Landry, Chief; John Paul Benoit, Captain; Barry Evers,
Firefighter/EMT; Mark W. Guerin, Firefighter/EMT, Call Lieutenant;
Judson Swinimer, Firefighter/EMT, and Erick Benoit,
Firefighter/EMT, Call Lieutenant

Call Firefighters/EMTs:

Matthew Olson, Call Lieutenant; Paul Dudley, Call Lieutenant;
Jeremy Fiorvanti, Jason Galofaro, Suzanne Siewierski, Keith Villa,
Todd Jakubek, Kristina Ellis, Timothy Gray, Camden Herlihy, Yuris
Mangolds, Michael Murphy, Rachel Vroegindewey, and Jonathan
Beharrell

Call Firefighters:

Barrett Dilling, Scott Dwinells, Gregg Silverio, Kevin Benoit, Peter
Casello, Jonathan Gray, Matthew Lowe, Nicholas Hopkins, Steven
Walsh, George Taylor, Matthew Cristy, Ralph Rodriguez, Matthew
McNulty, Timothy Benoit, Timothy Landry and Alejandro Cabrera
Apprentice Firefighters:

Ryan Boyd, Steve Landry and Eddie Warren

Special Police Officers:

William Bosworth, John T. Connors, John E. Fantasia, Lee Heron,
Richard D. Manley, Brandon C. Murphy, Gary P. Murphy, Michael
Smith, and Mark H. Trefry

Prisoner Watch duty:

Deborah L. Richardson



Public Safety Dispatchers:
John E. Fantasia, Dispatch Supervisor; Brandon C. Murphy, Gabriel
Lopez, and Darlene D. Trefry, and Shawn Marques, part time.

Two-year Appointments with terms ending on June 30, 2022:

Local Access Channel Advisory Committee: Robert Glorioso, Lisa
Lavina, Lee Pappas

Stow Municipal Affordable Housing Trust:

Cynthia Perkins

Springfest Organizing Committee:

Maura Hyland, Sherry Jusseaume

Three-year Appointments with terms ending on June 30, 2023:

Agricultural Commission: Liz Painter

Cemetery Trustees: Chet Jacobs

Conservation Commission: Serena Furman, Matthew Styckiewicz
Constable: Paul Tavalone

Historical Commission: Barbara Clancy

Lake Boon Commission: Kris Krablin

Minuteman High School Representative: Alice DeLuca

Trustee of the Randall Relief Fund, the Randall Town Fund and the
Town Farm Fund: Jeffrey Smith

Five-year Appointments with terms ending June 30, 2025

Economic Development & Industrial Commission: Jennifer Gero,
Serena Domolky Howlett
Zoning Board of Appeals: William Byron



CORRESPONDENCE



Joyce Sampson

From: townadministrator

Sent: Thursday, April 1, 2021 1:.57 PM
To: Joyce Sampson

Subject: FW: Congratulations and Gratitude
Attachments: EAB Retirement 20220630.pdf

Joyce, can you print the email and attachment and include it as correspondence for the Board. This should be in
their packet. not in the “extras™ pile.

Very truly yours,
Denise

Denise M. Dembkoski
Town Administrator

From: Bouquillon, Ed <e.bouquillon@minuteman.org>
Sent: Thursday, April 1, 2021 1:37 PM

To: townadministrator <townadministrator@stow-ma.gov>
Subject: FW: Congratulations and Gratitude

Hi Denise....FYI: Ed
Dear Minuteman Community,
Attached you will find Superintendent Ed Bouquillon’s letter announcing his retirement from Minuteman in June 2022.

The Minuteman District hired Ed as Superintendent-Director in 2007. Ed has been a phenomenal leader for Minuteman,
always putting the needs of the students first. Thanks to Dr B, Minuteman is known for high quality career and technical
programming integrated with rigorous academics.

Thanks to his work with, and support from our member communities, students enjoy a new building designed and
equipped to promote learning and collaboration. Ed is active in both state and national career and technical education,
workforce development initiatives and has co-authored books and written articles and papers during his tenure. He, and
a team of Minuteman faculty, founded the “Minuteman Academy Model” to support the academic, occupational, social,
and emotional progress of all students. Ed re-envisioned the Minuteman Technical Institute as the districts post-
secondary school, now offering professional training to young adults seeking career advancement. Our school was
recognized as a national Blue Ribbon school in 2018.

Ed’s accomplishments are numerous, and the community has been extremely fortunate to have him at the helm for the
past 14 years. Ed and the School Committee have important projects to complete, and Ed will continue to engage all
stakeholders with his usual vigor. He has put in place a strong team including teacher leaders and

administrators. Enroliment has grown beyond our expectations and Minuteman enjoys strong support from all our
member towns. A remarkable transformation since “Dr B” joined the district.



The school committee has been conducting strategic planning sessions for more than a year. A component of this work
has been succession planning for the leadership of the district. The School Committee is prepared to begin the transition.
We are committed to hiring a Superintendent-Director who will continue to grow the district in support of all learners.

We are grateful to Ed, and know we can count on his support as this process moves forward. As he reminds us, “we have

work to do, and miles to go, so let’s stay focused @”
Please do not hesitate to reach out with any questions.
Yours,

Pam Nourse, Acton

Chair, Minuteman School Committee

pam@newview.org

978-621-2418



April 1, 2021
Dear Staff, Students, and Parents in the Minuteman family:

It is time, after more than 30 years of serving, educating and leading others, for me to contribute
to workforce education and development in a different way. My retirement will no doubt involve
consulting, teaching, mentoring, writing, traveling, improving my BBQ, growing bigger gardens,
planting a vineyard, golfing, ..and well.. who knows?

| have had a blessed career working with remarkably passionate and brilliant people over my
career and most notably, at Minuteman the past 14 years. | am fortunate to have had the
opportunity to be a small part of the lives of so many young people. It has been a delight to
watch students as they discover what they do well and what they love to do. Answering these
questions, as you have heard me say once or twice, ignites passion and purpose.

It has been an honor to work alongside so many talented Minuteman teachers, students,
administrators, community leaders, parents, and staff. Being able to see the constant innovation
and creativity unfold during our Academy Development work has been a fulfilling experience. Itis
satisfying to know this work will continue to evolve and deepen.

The tradition of visionary programming for students is exemplary because of the collective
efforts of the Minuteman faculty and staff. Your willingness to accept a challenge, reflect on its
solution, engage, learn something new and implement is the reason so many school districts
want to see what you have done to make our vision a reality.

Minuteman is great place to work because of the relationships that arise. Over the years | have
told colleagues, friends, and families around the country that what separates Minuteman from
the rest are the relationships that exist between the staff and the students.

My wife and | privately came to this decision a few months ago, that | will retire June 30, 2022.
Announcing now allows the school committee to begin their development of the transition to a
new Superintendent. The Committee is developing a first-rate process that will involve listening
and reflecting on the feedback from the Minuteman community. | will be supporting the process
in every way appropriate, including working as closely as required with the new Superintendent,
whenever selected. | know you will all participate as professionals in this progression.

In the meantime, there is much work to do, and | will be engaged and at the helm. We will
continue to meet the challenges of this pandemic, provide support to mend what has been lost
and continue to increase the enrollment capacity so our students have access to this great place.

| will be forever grateful to have been a part of the Minuteman family and to be your colleague.
Minuteman has been the most challenging and most rewarding of all my professional
experiences.

Gratitude.

DrB



Joyce Sampson

—
From: JOSEPH PICORELLI <picorelli50@comcast.net>
Sent: Thursday, April 8, 2021 2:36 PM
To: selectmen
Subject: Maynard Founders Day reminder
Attachments: FINAL FINAL COPY FOUNDER'S DAY CELEBRATION (1).pdf

Good Afternoon,
| wanted to send along a reminder of the upcoming Founders Day celebration. | have attached the
invitation with all of the details.

Please let us know if you will be able to join us by April 17th so we know how many people to expect.
Feel free to contact me with any questions. We hope to see you there.

Have a fabulous day!

Sincerely,

Jennifer Picorelli

Member of the Maynard Sesquicentennial Committee
picorelliS0@comcast.net
978-290-6373




FOUNDERS DAY CELEBRATION
A SESQUICENTENNIAL COMMITTEE EVENT

PLEASE JOIN US IN CELEBRATING THE FOUNDING DAY OF THE TOWN OF MAYNARD!

WHEN: MONDAY APRIL 19, 2021

WHERE: THE SANCTUARY ~ 82 MAIN STREET ~ MAYNARD MA 01754

TIME: 11:15 AM TO 12:15 PM

*OPENING THE TIME CAPSULE TO SEE ITEMS BURIED 50 YEARS AGO

*THE PETITION TO FORM THE TOWNSHIP OF MAYNARD, READ BY A TIME TRAVELER
FROM 1871

*A 3 GUN SALUTE FROM MAYNARD’S AMERICAN LEGION MEMBERS

*TRADITIONAL TOWN WHISTLE TO SOUND AT 12:10PM

*CELEBRATORY CHURCH BELL PEAL ACROSS MAYNARD AT THE CONCLUSION OF

THE EVENT




CORRESPONDENCE

Additional correspondence on file in the office:

e Board of Appeals Notice of Public Hearing
May 3, 2021 at 7:40 p.m.
Special Permit for 214 Red Acre Road



